
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


Appraisal Subcommittee 
Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council 


1401 H Street, NW Suite 760 Washington, DC 20005 (202) 289-2735  Fax (202) 289-4101 


 


 


 


 


TO: Appraisal Subcommittee 


FROM: Jim Park, Executive Director 


DATE: June 29, 2016 


RE: July 13, 2016 ASC Meeting Package 


 


The enclosed materials are for the July 13th ASC Meeting. 


 
 


 


OPEN SESSION 


 Agenda for July 13th ASC Open Session Meeting 


 


 Reports 


 


 Chairman Lindo – Chairman’s Report 


 Mr. Park – Executive Director’s Report (Report attached) 


 Mr. Hull – Financial Report  


 Mr. Rhoads – Delegated State Compliance Reviews 


 


 May 11th ASC Open Session Meeting Minutes 


If you would like a Word version of the Minutes for editing, please let us know.  Your edits 


can be submitted to Claire Brooks (Claire@asc.gov) by close of business, July 11th.  A 


revised draft incorporating any edits received will be provided for the July 13th Meeting. 


 


GRANT REIMBURSEMENTS 


 February-March 2016 Appraisal Foundation grant reimbursement requests that have 


been reviewed and approved by the ASC staff 


 


FYI - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 


 Follow-up letter from AARO requesting a response to its August 11, 2015 letter 


regarding clarification on the definition of a federally related transaction (FRT) 


 


 White Paper co-written by the American Society of Appraisers and the National 


Association of Independent Fee Appraisers regarding the definition of an FRT 



mailto:Claire@asc.gov





2 


 


 


 


 AQB Criteria Change effective July 1st regarding Supervisory Appraiser requirements  


 


 Summary of the Appraisal Standards Board Meeting held June 17th in Indianapolis, IN 


 


 First Exposure Draft of proposed changes for the 2018-19 edition of USPAP   


 


 Compliance Review Reports for: Arizona, Arkansas and Louisiana 
 


 State Program Status Report 


 


 Approved minutes of the open and closed meetings from the March 9th ASC Meeting 


 


BRIEFING SUMMARY NOTES 
 


 Summary notes from the May 11th Briefing 


 


BRIEFING ITEMS 
 


 Agenda for the July 13th ASC Briefing that will follow the Open Session Meeting   








 


Open Session 
Cover Page 


July 13, 2016 








 


       


Appraisal Subcommittee 
Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council 


 
 
 


Agenda 


Date: July 13, 2016 
Time: 10:00 a.m. 
Location:   FRB, International Square 


1850 K Street, NW 
Washington, DC 20006 
Metro Stop:  Farragut West - 18th Street Exit 


 
 


 
 


Reports 
 


• Chairman A. Lindo 
 


• Executive Director J. Park 
 


• Delegated State Compliance Reviews D. Rhoads 
 


• Financial Report G. Hull 
 
 


Action and Discussion Items 
 


• May 11, 2016 Open Session Minutes A. Lindo 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


1401 H Street, NW  Suite 760  Washington, DC 20005  (202) 289-2735  Fax (202) 289-4101 


Open Session 








Page 1 of 3 


 


 


Appraisal Subcommittee 
Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council 


 
 


TO: Appraisal Subcommittee  


 


FROM: Jim Park, Executive Director   


 


DATE: July 13, 2016 


 


RE: Executive Director’s Report 


 


 


 


Appraisal Subcommittee Meetings and Briefings 


 


The next ASC Meeting will be held at 10:00 a.m. July 13, 2016, at the Federal Reserve Board 


facilities, International Square, 1850 K Street NW, 4th Floor, Washington, DC.  There will be an 


Open session and a Briefing is scheduled to follow the Meeting.  Briefing materials will be made 


available approximately one week prior to the Meeting.  We will alert you to their availability.  If 


anyone experiences any problems accessing the materials, please contact Brian Kelly at 


brian@asc.gov or (202) 595-7579 for assistance.  


 


Appraisal Foundation Monitoring and Review 


 


Board of Trustees 


 


Vicki Ledbetter-Metcalf and I attended the Spring Board of Trustees (BOT) meetings May 12-14 


in Naples, FL.  The meetings focused on selecting new members to the BOT and the Appraisal 


Practices Board (APB) to replace departing members.  Two new members were added to the 


BOT, Larry Disney and Dayton North.  Mark Levine was also reappointed to a second term.  


Two new members were also added to the APB: Greg Franceschi and Greg Graybadger.  Two 


current members of the APB, Shawn Wilson and Lisa Demaris were also reappointed.  


 


During the meetings, the Foundation reported that its financial condition was improving and 


anticipates ending the year in the black.  The attached summary of the unaudited financial reports 


shows that revenue is up almost $800,000 over the same period last year and expenses are down 


almost $170,000.     


 



mailto:brian@asc.gov





Page 2 of 3 


 


Appraisal Standards Board 


 


Vicki and I also attended the June 16-17 Appraisal Standards Board (ASB) meetings in 


Indianapolis, IN.  The ASB met to review and discuss the comments received on their First 


Exposure Draft of Proposed Changes for the 2018-19 edition of USPAP.  They also met in 


public to present the proposed changes and accept public comments.  There were approximately 


25 observers in the room.  The ASB continues to address the definition of a Report and by 


extension draft appraisal reports.  Their current proposal would limit the definition of a Report to 


only those communications that included a signed certification and USPAP would not require 


that those draft or preliminary reports (no signed certification) be retained in the workfile.  State 


regulators and many commenters have expressed concerns that these changes would conflict 


with several State laws and could lead to “value shopping” by users of appraisal services.  The 


ASB is reviewing the comments and will issue a second exposure draft within the next several 


weeks.  


 


During the meeting, the ASB publically acknowledged that errors were found in the 2016-17 


USPAP publication that necessitated an errata sheet be issued.  They also acknowledged errors in 


the current exposure draft.  The need to issue an errata is highly unusual.  However, I have 


expressed concerns for some time to the Foundation regarding the lack of professional and legal 


resources provided to the AQB and ASB.    


 


Appraiser Qualifications Board 


 


Denise Graves and I attended an AQB Meeting June 23-24 in Las Vegas, NV.  This meeting was 


devoted to discussion of the 300+ comments they received on the proposed changes to the AQB 


Real Property Appraiser Qualification Criteria.  The proposal to create an alternate track for 


licensed appraisers to become certified without a college degree received the most comments.  


Since the financial crash, licensed appraisers have had particularly difficult challenges due to 


restrictions place on the use of licensed appraisers by Congress and mortgage lenders.  On top of 


those restrictions, the college degree requirement for certified appraisers is a significant deterrent 


for licensed appraisers to become certified, which the AQB has recognized.  Comments 


represented many different views but the majority appeared to advocate for an alternate path to 


certification for individuals who have a lengthy track record in the appraisal profession but no 


college degree.  Other commenters argued that there are too many appraisers already and this 


change is meant to water down the Criteria and bring more appraisers and competition into the 


profession.  The AQB is also considering allowing experience from other related professions.  


The AQB took action on the current requirement that Supervisory Appraisers be in good 


standing as a certified appraiser for at least three years in the State where the Trainee is located.  


The AQB voted to amend the requirement by allowing a Certified appraiser to be in good 


standing for at least three years in any jurisdiction.  Between the earlier discussion draft and this 







Page 3 of 3 


 


exposure draft, the AQB has received over 600 comments on these proposals, the most ever 


received by one of the Foundation Boards on a particular topic.  


 


Appraisal Foundation and State Grants 


 


In February, ASC staff processed $28,955 in grant reimbursements ($27,515 for the Foundation 


Grant and $1,440 for the State Grant).  In March, staff processed $15,895 in grant reimbursements 


($13,436 for the Foundation Grant and $2,459 for the State Grant).  The total for both months was 


$44,850. 


 


During the July 13th Briefing, the Foundation staff will brief the ASC and answer questions 


regarding their anticipated FY17 grant request.  The Foundation indicated they would be sending 


documents to distribute to the ASC prior to the Briefing.  If anyone has any questions they would 


like forwarded to the Foundation in advance of the Briefing, please let me know. 


 


Unique Identification Number (UID) 


 


We anticipate initiating the UID within the next 2-3 months.  We have reached out to all States 


and believe that States will participate voluntarily.  Staff is working on the details of the rollout 


and will share those with the ASC once completed.     


 


National Registry of Appraisal Management Companies (AMCs) 


 


Development of the AMC Registry is in its final stages.  This project mostly involved building a 


new database for the AMC Registry, as well as the Appraiser Registry.  The existing website will 


serve both new Registries.  The AMC Registry should be ready to stand up once the AMC fee 


rule is in final form.  


 


Upcoming Meetings/Events 


 


On July 12, I am scheduled to provide an ASC Update at the Valuation Expo in Baltimore, MD.  


These meetings are generally attended by several hundred appraisers, AMC representatives and 


regulators.  These updates are a good opportunity to share with numerous stakeholders the 


important work of the ASC. 


 


 


Attachments 


 


Appraisal Foundation Financials 


 




















 


Page 1 of 8 


 APPRAISAL SUBCOMMITTEE 
OPEN SESSION MEETING MINUTES 


MAY 11, 2016 


LOCATION:  Federal Reserve Board – International Square location 
                       1850 K Street NW, Washington, DC 20006  


ATTENDEES  


ASC MEMBERS: FRB – Art Lindo (Chair)  
    CFPB – Mira Marshall 
    FDIC – Marianne Hatheway 
    FHFA – Robert Witt 
    HUD – Ada Bohorfoush 
    NCUA – Tim Segerson  
    OCC – Richard Taft 
               
ASC STAFF:  Executive Director – Jim Park 
    Acting Deputy Executive Director – Vicki Metcalf 
    General Counsel – Alice Ritter 
    Financial Manager – Girard Hull 
    Attorney-Advisor – Dan Rhoads 
    Policy Manager – Neal Fenochietti 
    Management & Program Analyst – Lori Schuster 
    Administrative Officer – Brian Kelly  
         
OBSERVERS: Appraisal Institute – Brian Rodgers 
    CFPB – Deana Krumhansl 
    FDIC – Richard Foley 
    FDIC – Suzy Gardner 
    FDIC – Victor Olshansky 
    FDIC – Kim Stock 
    FRB - Matt Suntag 
    HomeSight – Peter Gallo 
    HUD – Robert Frazier 
    Kelly Group – Don Kelly 
    OCC- Chris Manthey 
    OCC – Bob Parson 
    OCC – Joanne Williams 
    Pro Teck Valuation Services – Jeff Dickstein 
    REVAA – Mark Schiffman 
    REVAA – Tim Troutman 
    Stewart Valuation Services – Frank O’Neill      
               







 


Page 2 of 8 


The Meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m. by A. Lindo.   


 


 REPORTS 


 


• Chairman 


A. Lindo welcomed observers to the Meeting.  He welcomed M. Hatheway as the new 


FDIC representative to the ASC.  He announced that his term as Chairman of the ASC was 


renewed for another two-year term through March 2018.          


                


• Executive Director 


J. Park reported on ASC staff activities since the ASC’s March 9th Meeting.  The Appraisal 


Standards Board (ASB) issued its first Exposure Draft on changes to the 2018-19 edition of 


the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP).  The ASB is proposing 


several changes that could have a material impact on real estate related financial 


transactions.  Most notably, the proposed changes to the definition of a Report may conflict 


with several State laws and could lead to an increased use of “draft” appraisal reports in 


lending transactions.   


 


ASC staff attended the Appraiser Qualifications Board (AQB) Meeting in Phoenix, AZ on 


April 8th.  The Meeting focused mostly on the AQB’s Discussion Draft – Potential Areas of 







 


Page 3 of 8 


Change to the Real Property Appraiser Qualification Criteria.  There was also discussion 


on whether there is a current, or possibly future, shortage of appraisers.  The AQB is 


planning to conduct an appraiser demographics study and survey to better understand the 


supply and demand of appraisers.   


 


ASC staff also attended the April 8-10 Association of Appraiser Regulatory Officials 


(AARO) Spring Conference in Phoenix.  There were approximately 175 State regulators in 


attendance.  ASC staff will work with AARO and the Appraisal Foundation on a proposed 


publication documenting the 25th anniversary of Title XI.  The goal of this project is to put 


together a concise and engaging publication geared for State and Federal policy makers.     


 


J. Park added that work on the Unique Identifier Project is continuing and staff hopes to 


have it operational by the 4th quarter of 2016.     


             


• Delegated State Compliance Reviews          


D. Rhoads reported on State Compliance Reviews completed pursuant to delegated 


authority since the ASC’s March 9th Meeting.  Four State Compliance Reviews were 


finalized and approved by the Executive Director under delegated authority.  Georgia and 


Texas were awarded a Finding of “Excellent” and both will remain on a two-year Review 







 


Page 4 of 8 


Cycle.  Alabama and Guam were awarded a finding of “Good” and both will remain on a 


two-year Review Cycle.     


 


One State Compliance Review was finalized and approved by the Chairman under 


delegated authority:  The Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands was awarded a 


Finding of “Needs Improvement” and will remain on a two-year Review Cycle.   


 


A Follow-up Review of the U.S. Virgin Islands real estate appraiser regulatory program 


was conducted in January.  ASC staff will continue to monitor the progress of the Virgin 


Islands’ program.        


 


• Financial Manager 


G. Hull reported on ASC revenue and expenses as of March 31st.  FY16 revenue is 


currently at 45% of the total targeted FY16 revenue.  As to spending, 43% of the FY16 


budget has been expended through March 31st.   


 


The Appraisal Foundation submitted four grant reimbursement requests covering October 


2015 through January 2016.  The October request in the amount of $48,721 was for costs 


of the AQB Meeting in Washington, DC and initial planning of the 2016 State Investigator 







 


Page 5 of 8 


Training courses.  The November request in the amount of $36,311 was for costs related to 


the ASB Meeting in Cincinnati, OH.  The December request in the amount of $15,242 and 


January request in the amount of $14,783 were related to salaries and indirect costs to 


support the AQB and ASB, and initial meeting planning for the 2016 State Investigator 


Training courses.  ASC staff approved payment of these requests in total.  The total FY16 


grant budget is $659,632 and $544,575 remains unexpended.   


 


The Appraisal Foundation Agreed Upon Procedures Review for the period ending 


September 30, 2015 is scheduled to begin on May 16th.  Once the Review Report is 


finalized, a copy will be sent to the ASC members.   


      


 ACTION ITEMS 


• March 9, 2016 Open Session Minutes  


R. Witt made a motion to approve the March 9th open session meeting minutes as 


presented.  M. Marshall seconded and all members present voted to approve. 


   


• 2015  ASC Annual Report  


D. Rhoads presented the draft Annual Report.  He is requesting approval subject to minor, 


non-substantive edits.  R. Witt and R. Taft suggested that Appendix C be expanded to show 







 


Page 6 of 8 


appraiser totals from 1992-2015.  M. Marshall expressed this would be useful given the 


current discussions on potential appraiser shortages.  D. Rhoads said he would do so.  R. 


Witt asked if trainees could be included in Appendix C since it might be helpful to see if 


there are new appraisers coming into the system.  D. Rhoads explained that trainees are not 


included on the National Registry, and therefore we do not have accurate data.  J. Park 


added that not all States have a trainee program.  R. Witt asked how appraisers obtain 


experience if a State does not have a trainee program.  V. Metcalf responded that 


individuals may work with an appraiser to obtain experience.  


 


R. Witt moved to approve the 2015 ASC Annual Report, with changes to Appendix C as 


discussed above.  A. Bohorfoush seconded and all members present voted to approve.  


 


• Notice of Proposed Rulemaking (NPRM) on AMC Registry Fees 


A. Lindo thanked the staffs of the ASC and member agencies for their work on this.  A. 


Ritter said the draft NPRM would implement collection and transmission of appraisal 


management company (AMC) annual registry fees for States that elect to register and 


supervise AMCs as follows:  (1) in the case of an AMC that has been in existence for more 


than a year, $25 multiplied by the number of appraisers who have performed an appraisal 


for the AMC on a covered transaction in such State during the previous year; and  (2) in the 


case of an AMC that has not been in existence for more than a year, $25 multiplied by the 







 


Page 7 of 8 


number of appraisers who have performed an appraisal for the AMC on a covered 


transaction in such State since the AMC commenced doing business.  Performance of an 


appraisal is proposed to mean the appraisal service requested of an appraiser by the AMC 


was provided to the AMC.  The proposed rule sets forth the ASC’s interpretation of the 


phrase “working for or contracting with” as used in the calculation of annual AMC registry 


fees.  M. Marshall moved to approve the NPRM and authorize ASC staff to make non-


substantive, technical edits to comply with Federal Register requirements.  M. Hatheway 


seconded and all members present voted to approve. 


     


R. Taft and A. Lindo asked for a projected timeline for the Rulemaking to be finalized.  A. 


Ritter said there would be a 60-day comment period for the NPRM.  Once that closes, ASC 


staff will review the comments, prepare a Final Rule for ASC approval which would then 


be posted in the Federal Register.  She added staff hopes to stay on track with publication 


of the final rule before the end of the calendar year, depending on the number of comments 


received.  A. Lindo asked how the NPRM would be publicized.  J. Park responded that 


once the NPRM is published, ASC staff will post notice in the “What’s New” box of the 


ASC website along with a link to the NPRM, a media release will be circulated to 


stakeholders and interested parties, and an announcement will be sent to State appraiser 


regulatory officials.       


 







 


Page 8 of 8 


The Open Session adjourned at 10:50 a.m.  The next ASC Meeting will be July 13, 2016.     








Grant 


Reimbursements 


Cover Page 
July 13, 2016 








 
 


Appraisal Subcommittee 
Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council 


 


  
 TO: Appraisal Subcommittee 
 
 FROM:  Girard Hull, Financial Manager 
 
 DATE: July 13, 2016 
 
 RE: Appraisal Foundation February 2016 thru March 2016 Grant Reimbursement Requests 
 
   


  


1401 H Street, NW Suite 760 Washington, DC 20005 (202) 289-2735  Fax (202) 289-4101 


 
 


February 2016 Reimbursement Request 
 
The Appraisal Foundation submitted a request and received reimbursement of $28,955 to fund its 
February 2016 expenses for grant-eligible activities.  The following chart summarizes this 
reimbursement request:  
 


  
  


 
Major costs recovered in this reimbursement included: 


 
 The two-day series of work sessions and a public meeting held in Tampa, FL, February 18-19, 2016, 


including meeting and travel expenses. 
 Salary expenses for the ongoing activities of the ASB, AQB and for the pre-meeting administrative 


efforts for the 2016 Investigator Training courses. 
 
March 2016 Reimbursement Request 
 
The Appraisal Foundation submitted a request and received reimbursement of $15,895 to fund its 
March 2016 expenses for grant-eligible activities.  The following chart summarizes this 
reimbursement request:  
   


ITEM AQB ASB ITP TOTAL
Direct Labor (Salaries) 3,086$      2,798$        667$         6,550$        
Administrative Overhead 3,578$      3,245$        773$         7,596$        
Postage -$          -$            
Printing -$          -$            
Legal -$            -$            
Consulting 4,200$        4,200$        
Travel 10,608$      10,608$      
Subcontractors -$          -$            


TOTAL 6,664$      20,851$      1,440$      28,955$      







 


 


2 


 


 
Major costs recovered in this reimbursement included: 


 
 The salaries and indirect costs to support the ongoing activities of the ASB, AQB and for the pre-


meeting administrative efforts for the 2016 Investigator Training courses. Classes. 
   
Staff reviewed the reimbursement request items to ensure that the expense reimbursement requests 
were for grant-eligible activities and that the expenses were included in the 2016 annual approved 
grant award budget.  In accordance with the ASC Appraisal Foundation Grant Policy, grant-eligible 
activities must meet the following requirements: 


Appraisal Standards Board (ASB) 


 Related to the development, interpretation, amendment or advancement of the Uniform 
Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) associated with federally related 
transactions, or special projects related thereto  


 Included in the annual approved grant award budget 
 


Appraiser Qualifications Board (AQB) 


 Related to the: 
o development, interpretation, amendment or advancement of the Real Property 


Appraiser Qualification Criteria (AQB Criteria), or special projects related thereto; or 
o maintenance of the National Uniform Examination 


 Included in the annual approved grant award budget 
 
Board of Trustees (BOT) 
 
 Related to grant-eligible activities of the ASB or AQB (e.g., expenses associated with the 


Oversight Committee of the BOT may be eligible for reimbursement if directly related to 
oversight of the ASB or AQB’s grant eligible activities) 


 
 
 
 
 
 


ITEM AQB ASB ITP TOTAL
Direct Labor (Salaries) 2,312$        3,909$        676$           6,897$          
Administrative Overhead 2,681$        4,534$        784$           7,999$          
Postage -$            -$              
Printing -$            -$              
Legal -$              
Consulting -$            998$           998$             
Travel -$            -$            -$              
Subcontractors -$              


TOTAL 4,993$        8,443$        2,459$        15,895$        







 


 


3 


Staff approved total payments amounting to $44,850 as requested by the Foundation for February 
2016 and March 2016 activities.  The total grant budget is $659,632 and $499,725 remains. 
 
Other Issues:  Nothing noted 
 
 


 


Balance


ITEM AQB ASB ITP TOTAL AQB ASB ITP TOTAL
Direct Labor (Salaries) 30,629$   49,606$   17,379$   97,614$     16,822$   19,312$   8,360$       44,492$     53,122$      
Administrative Overhead 35,520$   57,528$   20,154$   113,202$   19,509$   22,396$   9,694$       51,598$     61,604$      
Postage -$         -$         -$         -$           -$         -$         -$           -$           -$            
Printing -$         -$         1,818$     1,818$       -$         -$         -$           -$           1,818$        
Legal 7,920$     7,920$     9,000$     24,840$     -$         -$         -$           -$           24,840$      
Consulting 34,694$   33,660$   44,000$   112,354$   4,800$     8,400$     998$          14,198$     98,156$      
Travel 42,139$   28,151$   217,281$ 287,571$   21,577$   28,151$   (111)$         49,618$     237,953$    
Subcontractors 22,233$   -$         -$         22,233$     -$         -$         -$           -$           22,233$      
TOTAL 173,135$ 176,865$ 309,632$ 659,632$   62,706$   78,259$   18,941$     159,907$   499,725$    


2016 AF Grant Reimbursement 
Summary


Including Current Request


2016 Approved AF Grant








 


FYI 
Cover Page 


July 13, 2016 






















































































 


IMPORTANT POINTS ON FRT ISSUE 
 
• The Banking Agencies’ proposed reinterpretation of “federally related transaction” under 


Title XI – exempting 85 to 90 percent of all real estate related financial transactions from all 
of Title XI’s protections – not only runs counter to Congressional intent and the long held 
understanding of public and private stakeholders, it contradicts the plain language of the 
1994 Appraisal and Evaluation Guidelines upon which the agencies’ base their 
reinterpretation. 


 
• If allowed to stand, the impact of the banking agencies’ reinterpretation would be far 


reaching: Mortgages guaranteed by FHA, VA, USDA Rural Housing Service would no 
longer be protected by Title XI’s enforcement mechanisms (i.e., the state appraiser licensing 
agencies and the federal Appraisal Subcommittee). Neither would mortgage loans sold, or 
simply eligible for sale, to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. Absent Title XI’s enforcement 
system, each agency would be forced to engage in their own enforcement program – a costly, 
time consuming, and duplicative effort that was never contemplated by Congress or the 
agencies under Title XI. 


 
• Congress, through both the Housing and Economic Recovery Act of 2009 and the Dodd-


Frank Act of 2010, demonstrated its own belief that Title XI was and is still a broad-based 
law intended to cover the vast majority of real estate related financial transactions. If it 
believed otherwise, and agreed with the banking agencies’ position, then why would 
Congress spend the time and effort to enact legislation that extends Title XI to federal 
programs that the banking agencies now claim are outside the scope of the law?  That just 
doesn’t make sense. 


 
• The 1994 changes to the Appraisal and Evaluation Guidelines underpinning the position 


taken by the banking agencies do not create a blanket exemption from all Title XI 
requirements. The exemptions cited only address instances where an agency has appraisal 
standards and appraiser qualification requirements that meet or exceed those imposed by 
Title XI, but do not extend to Title XI’s enforcement provisions. If anything, these 
exemptions reinforce the view that federal agencies can continue to rely on Title XI’s 
enforcement mechanisms. 


 
• The banking agencies’ actions related to redefining “federally related transaction” so as to 


exclude the vast majority of all real estate related financial transactions from Title XI’s 
protections, in concert with their repeated increases in the de minimus dollar threshold 
(below which an appraisal is not required) and their interest in another round of increases, 
evidence their belief that they have unlimited statutory authority to repeal Title XI by 
administrative fiat; and, there intention to do so. In fact, the banking agencies do NOT 
possess any authority to exempt transactions from Title XI; and, their use of the limited 
authority they do have to adjust the de minimus threshold above its original $50,000 level has 
been seriously abused and deserves immediate Congressional scrutiny. 








 
 
 


Change to the Real Property Appraiser Qualification Criteria 
Effective July 1, 2016 


 
 
The Appraiser Qualifications Board (AQB) held a public meeting in Las Vegas, Nevada on Friday, June 
24, 2016. The primary item discussed was the Exposure Draft of Proposed Changes to the Real 
Property Appraiser Qualification Criteria, issued on May 18, 2016.  
 
Given the feedback received from the public, state appraiser regulatory agencies, and the Appraisal 
Subcommittee, the AQB adopted a change to the Supervisory Appraiser requirements, which will go 
into effect July 1, 2016. Because the AQB sets the minimum requirements, state appraiser regulatory 
agencies having requirements that exceed AQB Criteria will remain in compliance, since the July 1, 
2016 change does not exceed current requirements.  
 
The language below is from the current AQB Criteria, and can be found on page 10 under “Supervisory 
Appraiser Requirements” in the Real Property Appraiser Qualification Criteria booklet. The text that is 
shown as underscored will be added, and that shown as strikeout will be deleted from the Criteria, 
effective July 1, 2016.  
 
If you have any questions, please contact Magdalene Vasquez, Qualifications Administrator, at 
magdalene@appraisalfoundation.org or 202-624-3074. 
 


 
 
I. General 


A. Supervisory Appraisers shall be responsible for the training, guidance, and direct supervision of 
the Trainee Appraiser by: 
1. Accepting responsibility for the appraisal by signing and certifying the appraisal complies with 


USPAP; 
2. Reviewing and signing the Trainee Appraiser report(s); and 
3. Personally inspecting each appraisal property with the Trainee Appraiser until the 


Supervisory Appraiser determines the Trainee Appraiser is competent to inspect the 
property, in accordance with the COMPETENCY RULE of USPAP for the property type. 


B. Supervisory Appraisers shall be state-certified and in “good standing” in the jurisdiction in which 
the Trainee Appraiser practices for a period of at least three (3) years prior to being eligible to 
become a Supervisory Appraiser. Supervisory Appraisers shall not have been subject to any 
disciplinary action within any jurisdiction within the last three (3) years that affects the 
Supervisory Appraiser’s legal eligibility to engage in appraisal practice. A Supervisory Appraiser 
subject to a disciplinary action would be considered to be in “good standing” three (3) years after 
the successful completion/termination of the sanction imposed against the appraiser. 


C. Supervisory Appraisers shall have been state-certified for a minimum of three (3) years prior to 
being eligible to become a Supervisory Appraiser. 


D C. Supervisory Appraisers must comply with the COMPETENCY RULE of USPAP for the property 
type and geographic location where the Trainee Appraiser is being supervised. 



mailto:magdalene@appraisalfoundation.org





 


 


     


E D. Whereas a Trainee Appraiser is permitted to have more than one Supervisory Appraiser, 
Supervisory Appraisers may not supervise more than three (3) Trainee Appraisers at one time, 
unless a state program in the credentialing jurisdiction provides for progress monitoring, 
supervisory certified appraiser qualifications, and supervision and oversight requirements for 
Supervisory Appraisers. 


FE. An appraisal experience log shall be maintained jointly by the Supervisory Appraiser and the 
Trainee Appraiser. It is the responsibility of both the Supervisory Appraiser and Trainee 
Appraiser to ensure the experience log is accurate, current and complies with the requirements 
of the Trainee Appraiser’s credentialing jurisdiction. At a minimum, the appraisal log 
requirements shall include: 
1. Type of property; 
2. Date of report; 
3. Address of appraised property; 
4. Description of work performed by the Trainee Appraiser and the scope of the review and 


supervision of the Supervisory Appraiser; 
5. Number of actual work hours by the Trainee Appraiser on the assignment; and 
6. The signature and state certification number of the Supervisory Appraiser. Separate 


appraisal logs shall be maintained for each Supervisory Appraiser, if applicable. 
GF. Supervisory Appraisers shall be required to complete a course that, at a minimum, complies 


with the specifications for course content established by the AQB, which is specifically oriented 
to the requirements and responsibilities of Supervisory Appraisers and Trainee Appraisers. The 
course is to be completed by the Supervisory Appraiser prior to supervising a Trainee Appraiser.* 


 
* Please refer to the Supervisory Appraiser / Trainee Appraiser Course Objectives and Outline in this booklet for more 
information. 


 








Meeting Summary
June 17, 2016


Indianapolis, IN


On June 17, 2016, the Appraisal Standards Board (ASB) held its second meeting of the year. The Board
discussed the First Exposure Draft of proposed changes for the 2018-19 edition of the Uniform Standards
of Professional Appraisal Practice, which included proposed revisions in the following areas of USPAP:


 Definition of Report
 Definition of Assignment
 Extraordinary Assumptions
 STANDARD 3 – Dividing into STANDARD 3, Appraisal Review, Development and


STANDARD 4, Appraisal Review, Reporting
 STANDARD 6 – Dividing into STANDARD 5, Mass Appraisal, Development and STANDARD


6, Mass Appraisal, Reporting
 Standards Rules 7-2(c), SR 7-5, and 8-2(v)
 Standards Rule 8-3
 Advisory Opinion 37, Computer Assisted Valuation Tools


The Board also accepted oral comments from meeting attendees. The Board encouraged the public to send
any suggested USPAP revisions to ASBComments@appraisalfoundation.org.


The ASB anticipates that it will be publishing a Second Exposure Draft of proposed changes for the 2018-
19 edition of USPAP in August, 2016.  The Board will be accepting written comments through October, as
well as oral comments at its next public meeting on October 21, 2016 in Washington, DC.








 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 1 


 


 
 


 


TO:  All Interested Parties 


 


FROM: Margaret Hambleton, Chair 


  Appraisal Standards Board 


 


RE: First Exposure Draft of proposed changes for the 2018-19 edition of the 


Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice 


 


DATE:  April 13, 2016 


 


 


The goal of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) is to promote 


and maintain a high level of public trust in appraisal practice by establishing requirements for 


appraisers. With this goal in mind, the Appraisal Standards Board (ASB) regularly solicits and 


receives comments and suggestions for improving USPAP. Proposed changes are intended to 


improve USPAP understanding and enforcement, and thereby achieve the goal of promoting and 


maintaining public trust in appraisal practice. 


The ASB is currently considering changes for the 2018-19 edition of USPAP. All interested 


parties are encouraged to comment in writing to the ASB before the deadline of June 10, 


2016. Respondents should be assured that each member of the ASB will thoroughly read and 


consider all comments. Comments are also invited at the ASB public meeting on June 16, 2016, 


in Indianapolis, Indiana. 


Written comments on this exposure draft can be submitted by mail, email and facsimile. 


Mail:  Appraisal Standards Board 


  The Appraisal Foundation 


  1155 15th Street, NW, Suite 1111 


  Washington, DC 20005 


 


Email:  asbcomments@appraisalfoundation.org 


 


Facsimile: (202) 347-7727 


  



mailto:asbcomments@appraisalfoundation.org





 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 2 


 


IMPORTANT NOTE: All written comments will be posted for public viewing, exactly as 


submitted, on the website of The Appraisal Foundation. Names may be redacted upon 


request. 


The Appraisal Foundation reserves the right not to post written comments that contain 


offensive or inappropriate statements. 


If you have any questions regarding the attached exposure draft, please contact Aida Dedajic, 


Standards Administrator at The Appraisal Foundation, via e-mail at 


aida@appraisalfoundation.org or by calling (202) 624-3058. 


Background 


The ASB issued a Discussion Draft in January 2016, identifying potential areas of change for the 


2018-19 edition of USPAP. The Discussion Draft addressed: 


 


 Communication of Assignment Results and definition of report 


 STANDARD 6, Mass Appraisal, Development and Reporting 


 Definition of assignment 


 Review of terms, assumption and extraordinary assumption 


 STANDARD 3, Appraisal Review, Development and Reporting 


 Review of Standards Rules 7-2(c), SR 7-5, and 8-2(v) 


 Review of Standards Rule 8-3 


 Review of Advisory Opinions 


 Other edits to improve clarity and enforceability of USPAP 


 


The ASB has reviewed all of the comments received in response to the Discussion Draft, and 


believes it is fulfilling its work plan and addressing the needs of appraisers and users of appraisal 


services by introducing the proposed changes for the 2018-19 edition of USPAP as contained in 


this exposure draft. 


 


Of paramount importance to the Board when considering any potential revisions to USPAP is the 


issue of public trust.  This umbrella of public trust, therefore, remains the primary consideration 


of the ASB in putting forth the concepts contained in this document. 


 


The Board currently intends to adopt any revisions for the 2018-19 edition of USPAP at its 


public meeting in early 2017.  Any such revisions to USPAP would become effective on January 


1, 2018. 


 



mailto:aida@appraisalfoundation.org





 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 3 


 


First Exposure Draft of Proposed Changes for the 


2018-19 edition of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice 
 


Issued: April 13, 2016 


Comment Deadline: June 10, 2016 
 


Each section of this exposure draft begins with a rationale for the proposed changes to USPAP. 


The rationale is identified as such and does not have line numbering. Where proposed changes to 


USPAP are noted, the exposure draft contains line numbers. This difference is intended to 


distinguish for the reader those parts that explain the changes to USPAP from the proposed 


changes themselves. 


When commenting on various aspects of the exposure draft, it is very helpful to reference the 


line numbers, fully explain the reasons for concern or support, provide examples or illustrations, 


and suggest any alternatives or additional issues that the ASB should consider.   


Unless otherwise noted, where text is proposed to be deleted from USPAP, that text is shown as 


strikeout. For example: This is strikeout text proposed for deletion. Text that is proposed to be 


added to USPAP is underlined. For example: This is text proposed for insertion. 


This exposure draft includes proposed revisions to USPAP and creation of a new Advisory 


Opinion to replace the retirement of another. After the considering the responses received during 


the exposure period the ASB will deliberate over the various proposals. The Board intends to 


issue a subsequent exposure draft this summer.  


For ease in identifying the various issues being addressed, the exposure draft is presented in 


sections.  


NOTE: If proposed revisions are adopted, it will necessitate administrative edits throughout 


USPAP. For example, in Section 1 on page 7, line 37 would need to be modified to reflect the 


newly adopted Standards. Another example is the term extraordinary assumption would be 


replaced if a new term is adopted. 


  







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 4 


 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


 


Section Issue Page 


1 Definition of Report 5 


2 Definition of Assignment 8 


3 Extraordinary Assumption 10 


4 STANDARD 3  13 


5 STANDARD 6 – Dividing into STANDARD 5, Mass Appraisal, 


Development and STANDARD 6, Mass Appraisal, Reporting 
24 


6 Standards Rules 7-2(c), SR 7-5, and 8-2(v) 39 


7 Standards Rule 8-3 48 


8 Advisory Opinion 37, Computer Assisted Valuation Tools 51 


  







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 5 


 


Section 1:   Definition of Report  


 


RATIONALE 


The ASB has heard concerns about the definition of report for some time. Enforcement officials 


and others have complained about appraisers who issue multiple reports in an assignment and 


attempt to disavow responsibility for prior iterations because they were not transmitted “upon 


completion of the assignment” as specified in the current USPAP definition of report. This claim 


has been made even in cases where the earlier version was submitted as a report with a signed 


certification and later revised. 


Whether an assignment is complete or not depends on the facts and matters at hand and also 


upon the perspective of a given party. Appraisers usually consider an assignment complete when 


they sign or communicate the report to the client, whereas clients have commented that an 


assignment is not complete until they review and approve or accept a report. In studying the 


overall concept of reporting, the ASB concluded that it is important to address all 


communications of assignment results regardless of where an appraiser is in the process.  


The ASB is proposing linking the definition of a report to when the report is communicated with 


a signed certification. By signing a certification, the appraiser is representing to the client that the 


document is a report. With the proposed definition, communication of a portion of an appraiser’s 


opinions or analyses performed as part of an appraisal or appraisal review assignment is not a 


report, thus not subject to reporting Standards, unless it includes a signed certification.  


The ASB received many comments that emphasized the importance of preliminary 


communications in complex assignments. These comments came from appraisers of all 


disciplines. When communicating portions of opinions or analyses performed as part of an 


assignment, the appraiser would still be required to comply with the ETHICS RULE, the 


COMPETENCY RULE and the JURISDICTIONAL EXCEPTION RULE.  


A number of stakeholders have expressed concern that this proposal could result in an increased 


number of clients requesting a draft prior to the appraiser submitting the final report. Over the 


years there have been reports of mortgage lenders using their appraiser’s preliminary findings in 


order to “shop” for an appraisal that will allow them to make their loan. This act is expressly 


prohibited by federal lending laws and its enforcement is outside the purview of the Appraisal 


Standards Board.  


The changes now proposed by the ASB would give appraisers the ability to make it clear that the 


document they are submitting is not a report, but rather a preliminary document for discussion. If 


a client relies upon one of these preliminary documents, the document in their file will be clearly 


marked as being preliminary in nature. 


USPAP does not specifically address whether preliminary communications must be retained. 


This decision is left to the discretion of the appraiser, regulations, laws, or requirements of 



Jim

Sticky Note

USPAP is not written for clients, it is written for appraisers to comply with. 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 6 


 


professional appraisal organizations. The ASB received stakeholder input from some 


associations and jurisdictions indicating that they have set requirements with regard to 


preliminary communications and document retention. As with all services an appraiser provides, 


it is the appraiser's responsibility to be aware of and comply with all applicable standards, 


guidelines, and requirements in addition to those required by USPAP.  


In order to maintain public trust, the ASB is proposing that all communications of preliminary 


assignment results be clearly identified as such (e.g., draft, preliminary, for discussion only, etc.) 


To do otherwise would be misleading. A change proposed to the Conduct Section of the ETHICS 


RULE specifically addresses this. 


DEFINITIONS 1 


REPORT: any written communication, written or oral, of an appraisal or appraisal review with a 2 


signed certification that is transmitted to the client or a party authorized by the client, upon 3 


completion of an assignment or any oral communication of an appraisal or appraisal review that 4 


is transmitted to the client or a party authorized by the client in lieu of a written report.  5 


Comment: Most reports are written and most clients mandate written reports. Oral 6 


report requirements (see the RECORD KEEPING RULE) are included to cover 7 


court testimony and other oral communications of an appraisal or appraisal 8 


review. 9 


ETHICS RULE 10 


Conduct:  11 


An appraiser must perform assignments with impartiality, objectivity, and independence, 12 


and without accommodation of personal interests.  13 


An appraiser: 14 


 must not perform an assignment with bias; 15 


 must not advocate the cause or interest of any party or issue; 16 


 must not accept an assignment that includes the reporting of predetermined 17 


opinions and conclusions;  18 


 must not misrepresent his or her role when providing valuation services that are 19 


outside of appraisal practice; 20 


 must not communicate assignment results with the intent to mislead or to defraud;  21 


 must not use or communicate a report or assignment results known by the appraiser 22 


to be misleading or fraudulent; 23 



Jim

Highlight







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 7 


 


 must not knowingly permit an employee or other person to communicate a report or 24 


assignment results that are misleading or fraudulent report; 25 


 must not communicate all or any portion of assignment results, except in a report, 26 


without clearly and conspicuously disclosing that the communication is preliminary 27 


(e.g., draft, preliminary, for discussion only, etc.); 28 


 must not use or rely on unsupported conclusions relating to characteristics such as 29 


race, color, religion, national origin, gender, marital status, familial status, age, 30 


receipt of public assistance income, handicap, or an unsupported conclusion that 31 


homogeneity of such characteristics is necessary to maximize value; 32 


 must not engage in criminal conduct;  33 


 must not willfully or knowingly violate the requirements of the RECORD 34 


KEEPING RULE; and 35 


 must not perform an assignment in a grossly negligent manner.  36 


Comment: Development standards (1-1, 3-1, 6-1, 7-1 and 9-1) address the 37 


requirement that “an appraiser must not render appraisal services in a careless or 38 


negligent manner.”  The above requirement deals with an appraiser being grossly 39 


negligent in performing an assignment which would be a violation of the Conduct 40 


section of the ETHICS RULE. 41 


  







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 8 


 


Section 2: Definition of Assignment 


RATIONALE 


The USPAP definitions of intended use and intended user include the phrase, “on the basis of 


communication with the client at the time of the assignment.” Because the USPAP definition of 


assignment includes both: (1) the agreement; and (2) the valuation service, there have been many 


questions about the time frame referred to by “at the time of the assignment.” 


This is important because appraisers cite USPAP in support of differing opinions about what 


must be done in the event of changes during a valuation service. For some, the USPAP 


definitions of intended use and intended user seem to prohibit changes after a specific point in 


the appraisal process. Others believe that the SCOPE OF WORK RULE permits the appraiser 


flexibility in how to respond to new information. One of the reasons for the differing 


interpretations is confusion about whether “at the time of the assignment” means the time of the 


agreement or the period of time during which the valuation service is being provided.  


To clarify, the ASB is proposing to revise the USPAP definition of assignment so that the term 


will refer only to the valuation service.  


A modification to the USPAP definitions of intended use and intended user is also being 


proposed for clarity and consistency.  


In addition, the ASB is proposing different wording for the phrase, “at the time of the 


assignment,” where it occurs in the Being Competent section of the COMPETENCY RULE. 


These proposed changes would confirm that the appraiser has flexibility to modify the scope of 


work based upon information or conditions discovered during a valuation service. The SCOPE 


OF WORK RULE states “Information or conditions discovered during the course of an 


assignment might cause the appraiser to reconsider the scope of work.” Advisory Opinion 36 


offers more detail, as follows: “If, during the assignment, an appraiser becomes aware of a 


change in the intended use, the appraiser must consider whether the extent of the development 


process and report content initially planned are still appropriate. If they are not, the appraiser 


must make the necessary changes.” USPAP does not prescribe business practices and does not 


specify the time frame when changes may be made. USPAP neither requires nor prohibits an 


appraiser from changing or renegotiating an agreement if a client makes changes to assignment 


elements after the appraiser has begun work. What USPAP does require is the appraiser take 


responsibility to ensure that the scope of work for each assignment is sufficient to produce 


credible assignment results.  


If these changes to USPAP are adopted, other minor edits for the purpose of clarity may be made 


to USPAP, the Advisory Opinions and Frequently Asked Questions prior to publication of the 


next edition.   


  







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 9 


 


DEFINITIONS 42 


ASSIGNMENT: 1) An agreement between an appraiser and a client to provide a 43 


valuation service; 2) the a valuation service that is provided by an appraiser as a 44 


consequence of an agreement with a clientsuch an agreement.  45 


INTENDED USE: the use or uses of an appraiser’s reported appraisal or appraisal 46 


review report assignment opinions and conclusions, as identified by the appraiser based 47 


on communication with the clientat the time of the assignment. 48 


INTENDED USER: the client and any other party as identified, by name or type, as 49 


users of the appraisal or appraisal review report by the appraiser based on the basis of 50 


communication with the clientat the time of the assignment. 51 


COMPETENCY RULE 52 


Being Competent 53 


Prior to agreeing to provide a valuation service, anThe appraiser must determine, prior to 54 


accepting an assignment, that he or she can perform the assignment competently. 55 


Competency requires: 56 


1. the ability to properly identify the problem to be addressed; 57 


2. the knowledge and experience to complete the assignment competently; and 58 


3. recognition of, and compliance with, laws and regulations that apply to the 59 


appraiser or to the assignment. 60 


Comment: Competency may apply to factors such as, but not limited to, an 61 


appraiser’s familiarity with a specific type of property or asset, a market, a 62 


geographic area, an intended use, specific laws and regulations, or an analytical 63 


method. If such a factor is necessary for an appraiser to develop credible assignment 64 


results, the appraiser is responsible for having the competency to address that factor 65 


or for following the steps outlined below to satisfy this COMPETENCY RULE. 66 


For assignments with retrospective opinions and conclusions, the appraiser must meet 67 


the requirements of this COMPETENCY RULE at the time the service is performed 68 


of the assignment, rather than the effective date. 69 


  







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 10 


 


Section 3: Extraordinary Assumption 


RATIONALE: 


Appraisers and regulators have commented about difficulty in understanding and explaining the 


term extraordinary assumption. Some appraisers have asked that the ASB find a different term so 


clients, unfamiliar with USPAP, do not have to be told that, despite what it says in a thesaurus, 


extraordinary does not mean “strange” or “bizarre.” It is important that clients and other 


intended users understand what is meant by the term so the required clear and conspicuous 


disclosure from the appraiser is not misleading.  


 


The ASB is proposing specific assumption as a new term for this concept with a revised 


definition.   


 


No Requirement to Use a Term or Label 


 


While the ASB believes that the new term and revised definition would help clarify the meaning, 


appraisers would not be required to use this label. The Standards Rules currently require 


appraisers to “clearly and conspicuously state all extraordinary assumptions and hypothetical 


conditions” but do not require use of specific terms.  Thus, appraisers could continue using the 


“extraordinary assumption” terminology on pre-printed forms such as the 1004. 


 


Replacing the Definition of Assumption with General Assumption 


 


In the recent Discussion Draft, the ASB requested comments on the idea of adding general 


assumption to the DEFINITIONS. The term, general assumption, is being proposed (in place of 


assumption) to help distinguish common, ordinary assignment conditions from more significant 


specific assumptions.  


 


A number of stakeholders have pointed out that any assumption, if found to be false, could 


impact the appraiser’s opinions and conclusions. Therefore, clarification of this concern is 


incorporated into the new definition of general assumption. 


 


If the change is adopted, general assumption will be substituted where assumption (but not 


extraordinary assumption) appears in USPAP. 


 


Replacing “Extraordinary” with “Specific” Assumption 


 


A specific assumption rises to the level that the appraiser wants to a give clear cautionary notice 


to the client and other intended users. At issue is a significant element of uncertainty in the 


appraiser’s opinions and conclusions in an appraisal due to an identified factor, which the 


appraiser cannot reasonably be expected to prove true or false. Identifying a specific assumption 


serves as a red flag that is required to be disclosed clearly and conspicuously in the report 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 11 


 


because if the specific assumption is found to be untrue, it could affect the appraiser’s 


assignment results. 


 


If the change is adopted, specific assumption will be substituted in USPAP wherever 


extraordinary assumption currently appears. 


 
 DEFINITIONS 70 


ASSUMPTION: that which is taken to be true. 71 


EXTRAORDINARY ASSUMPTION: an assumption, directly related to a specific 72 


assignment, as of the effective date of the assignment results, which, if found to be false, 73 


could alter the appraiser’s opinions or conclusions. 74 


Comment: Extraordinary assumptions presume as fact otherwise uncertain 75 


information about physical, legal, or economic characteristics of the 76 


subject property; or about conditions external to the property, such as 77 


market conditions or trends; or about the integrity of data used in an 78 


analysis. 79 


GENERAL ASSUMPTION: that which is generally accepted as true and the appraiser 80 


has no reason to doubt, but which, if found to be false, could alter the appraiser’s 81 


opinions and conclusions. 82 


SPECIFIC ASSUMPTION: an assumption about which the appraiser has reasonable 83 


grounds for uncertainty and which, if found to be false, could alter the appraiser’s 84 


opinions or conclusions in an assignment as of its effective date.  85 


Comment: Specific assumptions presume as fact otherwise uncertain 86 


information about physical, legal, or economic characteristics of the 87 


subject property; or about conditions external to the property, such as 88 


market conditions or trends; or about the integrity of data used in an 89 


analysis. 90 


SCOPE OF WORK RULE 


Lines 421-425 in the 2016-17 edition of USPAP 


Assignment conditions include general assumptions, extraordinary specific 91 


assumptions, hypothetical conditions, laws and regulations, jurisdictional 92 


exceptions, and other conditions that affect the scope of work.  Laws include 93 


constitutions, legislative and court-made law, administrative rules, and 94 


ordinances. Regulations include rules or orders, having legal force, issued by an 95 


administrative agency. 96 


Lines 440-448 in the 2016-17 edition of USPAP 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 12 


 


An appraiser must not allow assignment conditions to limit the scope of work to such a 97 


degree that the assignment results are not credible in the context of the intended use.  98 


Comment: If relevant information is not available because of assignment 99 


conditions that limit research opportunities (such as conditions that place 100 


limitations on inspection or information gathering), an appraiser must withdraw 101 


from the assignment unless the appraiser can: 102 


 modify the assignment conditions to expand the scope of work to include 103 


gathering the information; or 104 


 use an extraordinary a specific assumption about such information, if 105 


credible assignment results can still be developed. 106 


Additional Edits 


If these changes are adopted, then corresponding edits will also be made to the Standards Rules, 


Advisory Opinions and Frequently Asked Questions. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 13 


 


Section 4: STANDARD 3  


RATIONALE: 


The ASB is examining STANDARD 3 to determine whether it should be split into separate 


development and reporting standards like the Standards for real property appraisal 


(STANDARDS 1 and 2), personal property appraisal (STANDARDS 7 and 8), and business 


appraisal (STANDARDS 9 and 10). In addition, the ASB is considering a change to the 


definition of appraisal review; the proposed change to the definition would result in a definition 


that is more parallel to the definition of appraisal.     


This proposed restructuring does not materially change the current development or reporting 


requirements. However, separating the USPAP requirements for developing an appraisal review 


opinion from the requirements for communicating that opinion would result in a clearer 


expression of those requirements. This would also be more consistent with the remainder of 


USPAP. Similarly, the proposed change to the definition would separate appraisal review 


development from reporting in the same way it is separated for appraisal. 


Although at first glance it may appear that dividing the appraisal review requirements into two 


Standards is adding a layer of complexity, when looked at in concert with the rest of USPAP, it 


adds to the overall consistency and the end result would be a document that is easier to 


understand. 


Note: If the proposed revisions are adopted, the ASB would also make any corresponding edits 


to Advisory Opinion 20, An Appraisal Review Assignment That Includes the Reviewer’s Own 


Opinion of Value. 


The ASB is proposing the following edit to the definition of Appraisal Review: 


APPRAISAL REVIEW: (noun) the act or process of developing and communicating an 107 


opinion about the quality of another appraiser’s work that was performed as part of an appraisal 108 


or appraisal review assignment; (adjective) an opinion about the quality of another appraiser’s 109 


work that was performed as part of an appraisal or appraisal review assignment. 110 


Comment: The subject of an appraisal review assignment may be all or part of a 111 


report, workfile, or a combination of these.  112 


Due to the extent of the proposed changes to STANDARD 3 and the proposed addition of 


STANDARD 4, the specific edits are not shown in underscore and strikeout.  Some of the 


language has been edited for consistency with the other development and reporting standards. 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 14 


 


STANDARD 3: APPRAISAL REVIEW, DEVELOPMENT 113 


In developing an appraisal review, an appraiser must identify the problem to be solved, 114 


determine the scope of work necessary to solve the problem, and correctly complete 115 


research and analyses necessary to produce a credible appraisal review. 116 


Comment: STANDARD 3 is directed toward the substantive aspects of 117 


developing a credible opinion of the quality of another appraiser’s work that was 118 


performed as part of an appraisal or appraisal review assignment. The 119 


requirements set forth in STANDARD 3 generally follow the appraisal review 120 


development process in the order of topics addressed and can be used by 121 


appraisers and the users of appraisal services as a convenient checklist. 122 


In this Standard, the term “reviewer” is used to refer to an appraiser performing 123 


an appraisal review.  124 


Standards Rule 3-1  125 


In developing an appraisal review, the reviewer must: 126 


(a) be aware of, understand, and correctly employ those methods and techniques that 127 


are necessary to produce a credible appraisal review; 128 


Comment: Changes and developments in economics, finance, law, technology, 129 


and society can have a substantial impact on the appraisal profession.  To keep 130 


abreast of these changes and developments, the appraisal profession is constantly 131 


reviewing and revising appraisal methods and techniques and devising new 132 


methods and techniques to meet new circumstances. Each appraiser must 133 


continuously improve his or her skills to remain proficient in appraisal review.  134 


The reviewer must have the knowledge and experience needed to identify and 135 


perform the scope of work necessary to produce credible assignment results.  136 


Aspects of competency for an appraisal review, depending on the review 137 


assignment’s scope of work, may include, without limitation, familiarity with the 138 


specific type of property or asset, market, geographic area, analytic method, and 139 


applicable laws, regulations and guidelines.  140 


(b) not commit a substantial error of omission or commission that significantly affects 141 


an appraisal review; and 142 


Comment: A reviewer must use sufficient care to avoid errors that would 143 


significantly affect his or her opinions and conclusions.  Diligence is required to 144 


identify and analyze the factors, conditions, data, and other information that 145 


would have a significant effect on the credibility of the assignment results. 146 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 15 


 


(c) not render appraisal review services in a careless or negligent manner, such as 147 


making a series of errors that, although individually might not significantly affect 148 


the results of an appraisal review, in the aggregate affects the credibility of those 149 


results. 150 


Comment: Perfection is impossible to attain, and competence does not require 151 


perfection. However, an appraiser must not render appraisal review services in a 152 


careless or negligent manner.  This Standards Rule requires a reviewer to use due 153 


diligence and due care. 154 


Standards Rule 3-2 155 


In developing an appraisal review, the reviewer must: 156 


(a) identify the client and other intended users; 157 


(b) identify the intended use of the reviewer’s opinions and conclusions; 158 


Comment: A reviewer must not allow the intended use of an assignment or a 159 


client’s objectives to cause the assignment results to be biased.  A reviewer must 160 


not advocate for a client’s objectives. 161 


The intended use refers to the use of the reviewer’s opinions and conclusions by 162 


the client and other intended users; examples include, without limitation, quality 163 


control, audit, qualification, or confirmation.  164 


(c) identify the purpose of the appraisal review, including whether the assignment 165 


includes the development of the reviewer’s own opinion of value or review opinion 166 


related to the work under review; 167 


Comment: The purpose of an appraisal review assignment relates to the 168 


reviewer’s objective; examples include, without limitation, to determine if the 169 


results of the work under review are credible for the intended user’s intended use, 170 


or to evaluate compliance with relevant USPAP requirements, client requirements, 171 


or applicable regulations. 172 


In the review of an appraisal assignment, the reviewer may provide an opinion of 173 


value for the property that is the subject of the work under review.  174 


In the review of an appraisal review assignment, the reviewer may provide an 175 


opinion of quality of the work that is the subject of the appraisal review 176 


assignment.  177 


 (d) identify the work under review and the characteristics of that work which are 178 


relevant to the intended use and purpose of the appraisal review, including: 179 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 16 


 


(i) any ownership interest in the property that is the subject of the work under 180 


review;  181 


(ii) the date of the work under review and the effective date of the opinions or 182 


conclusions in the work under review; 183 


(iii) the appraiser(s) who completed the work under review, unless the identity is 184 


withheld by the client; and 185 


(iv) the physical, legal, and economic characteristics of the property, properties, 186 


property type(s), or market area in the work under review. 187 


Comment: The subject of an appraisal review assignment may be all or part of a 188 


report, a workfile, or a combination of these, and may be related to an appraisal or 189 


appraisal review assignment. 190 


 (e) identify any extraordinary assumptions necessary in the review assignment; 191 


Comment: An extraordinary assumption may be used in a review assignment only 192 


if: 193 


 it is required to properly develop credible opinions and conclusions; 194 


 the reviewer has a reasonable basis for the extraordinary assumption;  195 


 use of the extraordinary assumption results in a credible analysis; and 196 


 the reviewer complies with the disclosure requirements set forth in USPAP 197 


for extraordinary assumptions. 198 


(f) identify any hypothetical conditions necessary in the review assignment; and 199 


Comment: A hypothetical condition may be used in a review assignment only if: 200 


 use of the hypothetical condition is clearly required for legal purposes, for 201 


purposes of reasonable analysis, or for purposes of comparison;  202 


 use of the hypothetical condition results in a credible analysis; and 203 


 the reviewer complies with the disclosure requirements set forth in USPAP 204 


for hypothetical conditions. 205 


(g) determine the scope of work necessary to produce credible assignment results in 206 


accordance with the SCOPE OF WORK RULE.  207 


Comment: Reviewers have broad flexibility and significant responsibility in 208 


determining the appropriate scope of work in an appraisal review assignment.  209 


Information that should have been considered by the original appraiser can be 210 


used by the reviewer in developing an opinion as to the quality of the work under 211 


review. 212 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 17 


 


Information that was not available to the original appraiser in the normal course 213 


of business may also be used by the reviewer; however, the reviewer must not use 214 


such information in the reviewer’s development of an opinion as to the quality of 215 


the work under review.  216 


Standards Rule 3-3 217 


In developing an appraisal review, a reviewer must apply the appraisal review methods 218 


and techniques that are necessary for credible assignment results.  219 


(a) When necessary for credible assignment results in the review of analyses, opinions, 220 


and conclusions, the reviewer must: 221 


(i) develop an opinion as to whether the analyses are appropriate within the 222 


context of the requirements applicable to that work; 223 


(ii) develop an opinion as to whether the opinions and conclusions are credible 224 


within the context of the requirements applicable to that work; and 225 


(iii) develop the reasons for any disagreement. 226 


Comment: Consistent with the reviewer’s scope of work, the reviewer is required 227 


to develop an opinion as to the completeness, accuracy, adequacy, relevance, and 228 


reasonableness of the analysis in the work under review, given law, regulations, or 229 


intended user requirements applicable to the work under review.  230 


(b) When necessary for credible assignment results in the review of a report, the 231 


reviewer must: 232 


(i) develop an opinion as to whether the report is appropriate and not 233 


misleading within the context of the requirements applicable to that work; 234 


and 235 


(ii) develop the reasons for any disagreement. 236 


Comment: Consistent with the reviewer’s scope of work, the reviewer is required 237 


to develop an opinion as to the completeness, accuracy, adequacy, relevance, and 238 


reasonableness of the report, given law, regulations, or intended user requirements 239 


applicable to that work. 240 


(c) When the assignment includes the reviewer developing his or her own opinion of 241 


value or review opinion, the following apply: 242 


(i) The requirements of STANDARDS 1, 6, 7, or 9 apply to the reviewer’s 243 


opinion of value for the property that is the subject of the appraisal review 244 


assignment. 245 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 18 


 


(ii) The requirements of STANDARD 3 apply to the reviewer’s opinion of quality 246 


for the work that is the subject of the appraisal review assignment.  247 


Comment: These requirements apply to: 248 


 The reviewer’s own opinion of value when the subject of the review is the 249 


product of an appraisal assignment; or 250 


 The reviewer’s own opinion regarding the work reviewed by another when 251 


the subject of the review is the product of an appraisal review assignment. 252 


These requirements apply whether the reviewer’s own opinion:  253 


 concurs with the opinions and conclusions in the work under review; or 254 


 differs from the opinion and conclusions in the work under review. 255 


When the assignment includes the reviewer developing his or her own opinion of 256 


value or review opinion, the following apply:  257 


 The reviewer’s scope of work in developing his or her own opinion of 258 


value or review opinion may be different from that of the work under 259 


review. 260 


 The effective date of the reviewer’s opinion of value may be the same or 261 


different from the effective date of the work under review.  262 


 The reviewer is not required to replicate the steps completed by the 263 


original appraiser. Those items in the work under review that the reviewer 264 


concludes are credible can be extended to the reviewer’s development 265 


process on the basis of an extraordinary assumption.  Those items not 266 


deemed to be credible must be replaced with information or analysis 267 


developed in conformance with STANDARD 1, 3, 6, 7, or 9, as 268 


applicable, to produce credible assignment results. 269 


STANDARD 4: APPRAISAL REVIEW, REPORTING 270 


In reporting the results of an appraisal review, an appraiser must communicate each 271 


analysis, opinion, and conclusion in a manner that is not misleading. 272 


Comment: STANDARD 4 addresses the content and level of information required 273 


in a report that communicates the results of an appraisal review. 274 


STANDARD 4 does not dictate the form, format, or style of appraisal review 275 


reports. The form, format, and style of a report are functions of the needs of 276 


intended users and appraisers. The substantive content of a report determines its 277 


compliance. 278 


Standards Rule 4-1 279 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 19 


 


Each written or oral Appraisal Review Report must be separate from the work under 280 


review and must: 281 


(a) clearly and accurately set forth the appraisal review in a manner that will not be 282 


misleading; 283 


(b) contain sufficient information to enable the intended users of the appraisal review to 284 


understand the report properly; and 285 


(c) clearly and accurately disclose all assumptions, extraordinary assumptions, and 286 


hypothetical conditions used in the assignment. 287 


Comment: An Appraisal Review Report communicates the results of an appraisal 288 


review, which can have as its subject another appraiser’s work in an appraisal or 289 


appraisal review assignment.  290 


Standards Rule 4-2 291 


The report content and level of information in the Appraisal Review Report is specific to the 292 


needs of the client, other intended users, the intended use, and requirements applicable to the 293 


assignment. The reporting requirements set forth in this Standard are the minimum for an 294 


Appraisal Review Report.  An appraiser must supplement a report form, when necessary, to 295 


ensure that any intended user of the appraisal review is not misled and that the report complies 296 


with the applicable content requirements set forth in this Standards Rule. 297 


The content of an Appraisal Review Report must be consistent with the intended use of the 298 


appraisal review and, at a minimum: 299 


(a) state the identity of the client, unless the client has specifically requested otherwise; 300 


state the identity of any intended users by name or type; 301 


Comment:  An appraiser must use care when identifying the client to avoid 302 


violations of the Confidentiality section of the ETHICS RULE.  If a client 303 


requests that the client’s identity be withheld from the report, the appraiser may 304 


comply with this request.  In these instances, the appraiser must document the 305 


identity of the client in the workfile and must state in the report that the identity of 306 


the client has been withheld at the client’s request. 307 


(b) state the intended use of the appraisal review; 308 


(c) state the purpose of the appraisal review; 309 


(d) state information sufficient to identify: 310 


(i) the work under review, including any ownership interest in the property that 311 


is the subject of the work under review; 312 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 20 


 


(ii) the date of the work under review;   313 


(iii) the effective date of the opinions or conclusions in the work under review; 314 


and  315 


(iv) the appraiser(s) who completed the work under review, unless the identity is 316 


withheld by the client. 317 


Comment: If the identity of the appraiser(s) in the work under review is withheld 318 


by the client, that fact must be stated in the appraisal review report. 319 


(e) state the date of the appraisal review report; 320 


(f) clearly and conspicuously: 321 


 state all extraordinary assumptions and hypothetical conditions; and 322 


 state that their use might have affected the assignment results. 323 


(g) state the scope of work used to develop the appraisal review;  324 


Comment: Because intended users’ reliance on an appraisal review may be 325 


affected by the scope of work, the appraisal review report must enable them to be 326 


properly informed and not misled.  Sufficient information includes disclosure of 327 


research and analyses performed and might also include disclosure of research 328 


and analyses not performed. 329 


When any portion of the work involves significant appraisal or appraisal review 330 


assistance, the reviewer must state the extent of that assistance.  The name(s) of 331 


those providing the significant assistance must be stated in the certification, in 332 


accordance with Standards Rule 4-3.  333 


(h) state the reviewer’s opinions and conclusions about the work under review, 334 


including the reasons for any disagreement; 335 


Comment: The report must provide sufficient information to enable the client and 336 


intended users to understand the rationale for the reviewer’s opinions and conclusions. 337 


(i) when the scope of work includes the reviewer’s development of an opinion of value 338 


or review opinion related to the work under review, the reviewer must:  339 


(i) state which information, analyses, opinions, and conclusions in the work 340 


under review that the reviewer accepted as credible and used in developing 341 


the reviewer’s opinion and conclusions; 342 


(ii)  if applicable, state the effective date of the reviewer’s opinion of value; 343 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 21 


 


(iii)  at a minimum, summarize any additional information relied on and the 344 


reasoning for the reviewer’s opinion of value or review opinion related to the 345 


work under review; 346 


(iv)  clearly and conspicuously: 347 


 state all extraordinary assumptions and hypothetical conditions 348 


connected with the reviewer’s opinion of value or review opinion 349 


related to the work under review; and 350 


 state that their use might have affected the assignment results. 351 


Comment: The reviewer may include his or her own opinion of value or review 352 


opinion related to the work under review within the appraisal review report itself 353 


without preparing a separate report.  However, data and analyses provided by the 354 


reviewer to support a different opinion or conclusion must match, at a minimum, 355 


except for the certification requirements, the reporting requirements for an: 356 


 Appraisal Report for a real property appraisal (Standards Rule 2-2(a)); 357 


 Appraisal Report for a personal property appraisal (Standards Rule 8-358 


2(a)); 359 


 Appraisal Review Report for an appraisal review (Standards Rule 3-5); 360 


 Mass Appraisal Report for mass appraisal (Standards Rule 6-8); and 361 


 Appraisal Report for business appraisal (Standards Rule 10-2(a)). 362 


(j) include a signed certification in accordance with Standards Rule 4-3.  363 


Standards Rule 4-3  364 


Each written Appraisal Review Report must contain a signed certification that is similar in 365 


content to the following form:  366 


I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief: 367 


— the statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct. 368 


— the reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the 369 


reported assumptions and limiting conditions and are my personal, 370 


impartial, and unbiased professional analyses, opinions, and conclusions.  371 


— I have no (or the specified) present or prospective interest in the property 372 


that is the subject of the work under review and no (or the specified) 373 


personal interest with respect to the parties involved.  374 


— I have performed no (or the specified) services, as an appraiser or in any 375 


other capacity, regarding the property that is the subject of the work under 376 


review within the three-year period immediately preceding acceptance of this 377 


assignment. 378 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 22 


 


— I have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of the work 379 


under review or to the parties involved with this assignment.  380 


— my engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or 381 


reporting predetermined results.  382 


— my compensation is not contingent on an action or event resulting from the 383 


analyses, opinions, or conclusions in this review or from its use.  384 


— my compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the 385 


development or reporting of predetermined assignment results or 386 


assignment results that favors the cause of the client, the attainment of a 387 


stipulated result, or the occurrence of a subsequent event directly related to 388 


the intended use of this appraisal review.  389 


— my analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed and this review 390 


report was prepared in conformity with the Uniform Standards of 391 


Professional Appraisal Practice.  392 


— I have (or have not) made a personal inspection of the subject of the work 393 


under review. (If more than one person signs this certification, the 394 


certification must clearly specify which individuals did and which 395 


individuals did not make a personal inspection of the subject of the work 396 


under review.) (For reviews of a business or intangible asset appraisal 397 


assignment, the inspection portion of the certification is not applicable.)  398 


— no one provided significant appraisal or appraisal review assistance to the 399 


person signing this certification. (If there are exceptions, the name of each 400 


individual(s) providing appraisal or appraisal review assistance must be 401 


stated.)  402 


Comment: A signed certification is an integral part of the Appraisal Review 403 


Report.  A reviewer who signs any part of the appraisal review report, including a 404 


letter of transmittal, must also sign the certification. 405 


Any reviewer who signs a certification accepts responsibility for all elements of 406 


the certification, for the assignment results, and for the contents of the Appraisal 407 


Review Report. 408 


Appraisal review is distinctly different from the cosigning activity addressed in 409 


Standards Rules 2-3, 6-9, 8-3, and 10-3.  To avoid confusion between these 410 


activities, a reviewer performing an appraisal review must not sign the work 411 


under review unless he or she intends to accept responsibility as a cosigner of that 412 


work. 413 


When a signing appraiser has relied on work done by appraisers and others who 414 


do not sign the certification, the signing appraiser is responsible for the decision 415 


to rely on their work.  The signing appraiser is required to have a reasonable basis 416 


for believing that those individuals performing the work are competent.  The 417 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 23 


 


signing appraiser also must have no reason to doubt that the work of those 418 


individuals is credible.   419 


The names of individuals providing significant appraisal or appraisal review 420 


assistance who do not sign a certification must be stated in the certification.  It is 421 


not required that the description of their assistance be contained in the 422 


certification, but disclosure of their assistance is required in accordance with 423 


Standards Rule 4-2(g). 424 


Standards Rule 4-4  425 


To the extent that it is both possible and appropriate, an oral Appraisal Review Report 426 


must address the substantive matters set forth in Standards Rule 4-2.  427 


Comment: See the RECORD KEEPING RULE for corresponding requirements. 428 


  







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 24 


 


Section 5:   Dividing STANDARD 6, Mass Appraisal, into STANDARD 5, Mass 
Appraisal, Development and STANDARD 6, Mass Appraisal, Reporting  


RATIONALE 


Appraisal practice is a continually evolving process. One of the ASB’s responsibilities is to 


periodically review each of the Standards in order to determine whether or not it properly 


addresses the current development methods and report content for the particular discipline.   


For the 2018-19 edition of USPAP the ASB is examining STANDARD 6. This examination 


included the formation of a working group of mass appraisers, including ad valorem appraisers. 


The working group was charged with reviewing STANDARD 6 for possible edits or revisions. 


The group was also asked to offer an opinion as to whether or not STANDARD 6 should be split 


into separate development and reporting standards like the Standards for real property appraisal 


(STANDARDS 1 and 2), personal property appraisal (STANDARDS 7 and 8), and business 


appraisal (STANDARDS 9 and 10).   


The mass appraisal working group was in favor of dividing STANDARD 6 into separate 


development and reporting standards. The group also presented several potential changes to 


STANDARD 6. All of these potential changes are being considered by the ASB. However, for 


this exposure draft, only basic changes related to the division of STANDARD 6 and some minor 


wording changes relating to reporting are being exposed. These proposed edits would make the 


mass appraisal reporting standard more consistent with the other standards. For example, the 


requirement to summarize rather than describe is being proposed as being more appropriate to 


mass appraisal reporting. This is also consistent with the other reporting standards and the 


requirements for an Appraisal Report.   


The proposed new STANDARD 5 and STANDARD 6 follow. Due to the changes in the 


Standards Rule numbers and required additions to make the separate standards similar to the 


other paired Standards, this material is not in strikeout and underline format.  


  







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 25 


 


STANDARD 5:  MASS APPRAISAL, DEVELOPMENT 429 


In developing a mass appraisal, an appraiser must be aware of, understand, and correctly 430 


employ those recognized methods and techniques necessary to produce and communicate 431 


credible mass appraisals. 432 


Comment: STANDARD 5 applies to all mass appraisals of real or personal 433 


property regardless of the purpose or use of such appraisal.53  STANDARD 5 is 434 


directed toward the substantive aspects of developing credible analyses, opinions, 435 


and conclusions in the mass appraisal of properties.  The jurisdictional exceptions 436 


applicable to public mass appraisals prepared for ad valorem taxation do not apply 437 


to mass appraisals prepared for other purposes.  438 


A mass appraisal includes: 439 


1) identifying properties to be appraised; 440 


2) defining market area of consistent behavior that applies to properties; 441 


3) identifying characteristics (supply and demand) that affect the creation 442 


of value in that market area; 443 


4) developing a model structure that reflects the relationship among the 444 


characteristics affecting value in the market area; 445 


5) calibrating the model structure to determine the contribution of the 446 


individual characteristics affecting value; 447 


6) applying the conclusions reflected in the model to the characteristics of 448 


the property(ies) being appraised; and 449 


7) reviewing the mass appraisal results. 450 


The JURISDICTIONAL EXCEPTION RULE may apply to several sections of 451 


STANDARD 5 because ad valorem tax administration is subject to various state, 452 


county, and municipal laws. 453 


Standards Rule 5-1 454 


In developing a mass appraisal, an appraiser must: 455 


(a)  be aware of, understand, and correctly employ those recognized methods and 456 


techniques necessary to produce a credible mass appraisal; 457 


Comment: Mass appraisal provides for a systematic approach and uniform 458 


application of appraisal methods and techniques to obtain estimates of value that 459 


allow for statistical review and analysis of results. 460 


                                                 
53  See Advisory Opinion 32, Ad Valorem Property Tax Appraisal and Mass Appraisal Assignments. 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 26 


 


This requirement recognizes that the principle of change continues to affect the 461 


manner in which appraisers perform mass appraisals. Changes and developments 462 


in the real property and personal property fields have a substantial impact on the 463 


appraisal profession. 464 


To keep abreast of these changes and developments, the appraisal profession is 465 


constantly reviewing and revising appraisal methods and techniques and devising 466 


new methods and techniques to meet new circumstances. For this reason it is not 467 


sufficient for appraisers to simply maintain the skills and the knowledge they 468 


possess when they become appraisers. Each appraiser must continuously improve 469 


his or her skills to remain proficient in mass appraisal. 470 


(b) not commit a substantial error of omission or commission that significantly affects a 471 


mass appraisal; and 472 


Comment: An appraiser must use sufficient care to avoid errors that would 473 


significantly affect his or her opinions and conclusions. Diligence is required to 474 


identify and analyze the factors, conditions, data, and other information that 475 


would have a significant effect on the credibility of the assignment results. 476 


(c) not render a mass appraisal in a careless or negligent manner. 477 


Comment: Perfection is impossible to attain, and competence does not require 478 


perfection. However, an appraiser must not render appraisal services in a careless 479 


or negligent manner. This Standards Rule requires an appraiser to use due 480 


diligence and due care. 481 


Standards Rule 5-2  482 


In developing a mass appraisal, an appraiser must: 483 


(a) identify the client and other intended users;54 484 


Comment: It is the appraiser’s responsibility to identify the client and other 485 


intended users.  In ad valorem mass appraisal, the assessor, or party responsible 486 


for certification of the assessment or tax role is required to apply the relevant law 487 


or statute and identify the client and other intended users (if any). 488 


(b) identify the intended use of the appraisal;55 489 


Comment:  An appraiser must not allow the intended use of an assignment or a 490 


client’s objectives to cause the assignment results to be biased. 491 


                                                 
54  See Advisory Opinion 36, Identification and Disclosure of Client, Intended Use, and Intended Users. 
55  See Advisory Opinion 36, Identification and Disclosure of Client, Intended Use, and Intended Users. 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 27 


 


(c)  identify the type and definition of value, and, if the value opinion to be developed is 492 


market value, ascertain whether the value is to be the most probable price: 493 


(i) in terms of cash; or 494 


(ii) in terms of financial arrangements equivalent to cash; or 495 


(iii) in such other terms as may be precisely defined; and 496 


(iv) if the opinion of value is based on non-market financing or financing with 497 


unusual conditions or incentives, the terms of such financing must be clearly 498 


identified and the appraiser’s opinion of their contributions to or negative 499 


influence on value must be developed by analysis of relevant market data; 500 


Comment:  For certain types of appraisal assignments in which a legal definition 501 


of market value has been established and takes precedence, the 502 


JURISDICTIONAL EXCEPTION RULE may apply. 503 


(d)  identify the effective date of the appraisal;56 504 


(e)  identify the characteristics of the properties that are relevant to the type and 505 


definition of value and intended use,57 including: 506 


(i) the group with which a property is identified according to similar market 507 


influence; 508 


(ii) the appropriate market area and time frame relative to the property being 509 


valued; and 510 


(iii) their location and physical, legal, and economic characteristics; 511 


Comment: The properties must be identified in general terms, and each individual 512 


property in the universe must be identified, with the information on its identity 513 


stored or referenced in its property record. 514 


When appraising proposed improvements, an appraiser must examine and have 515 


available for future examination, plans, specifications, or other documentation 516 


sufficient to identify the extent and character of the proposed improvements.58 517 


Ordinarily, proposed improvements are not appraised for ad valorem tax 518 


purposes. Appraisers, however, are sometimes asked to provide opinions of value 519 


                                                 
56  See Advisory Opinion 34, Retrospective and Prospective Value Opinions. 
57  See Advisory Opinion 23, Identifying the Relevant Characteristics of the Subject Property of a Real Property Appraisal 


Assignment, if applicable. 
58  See Advisory Opinion 17, Appraisals of Real Property with Proposed Improvements, if applicable.  







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 28 


 


of proposed improvements so that developers can estimate future property tax 520 


burdens. Sometimes units in condominiums and planned unit developments are 521 


sold with an interest in un-built community property, the pro rata value of which, 522 


if any, must be considered in the analysis of sales data. 523 


(f)  identify the characteristics of the market that are relevant to the purpose and 524 


intended use of the mass appraisal including: 525 


(i) location of the market area; 526 


(ii) physical, legal, and economic attributes; 527 


(iii) time frame of market activity; and 528 


(iv) property interests reflected in the market; 529 


(g)  in appraising real property or personal property: 530 


(i) identify the appropriate market area and time frame relative to the property 531 


being valued; 532 


(ii) when the subject is real property, identify and consider any personal 533 


property, trade fixtures, or intangibles that are not real property but are 534 


included in the appraisal; 535 


(iii) when the subject is personal property, identify and consider any real 536 


property or intangibles that are not personal property but are included in the 537 


appraisal; 538 


(iv) identify known easements, restrictions, encumbrances, leases, reservations, 539 


covenants, contracts, declarations, special assessments, ordinances, or other 540 


items of similar nature; and 541 


(v) identify and analyze whether an appraised fractional interest, physical 542 


segment, or partial holding contributes pro rata to the value of the whole; 543 


Comment: The above requirements do not obligate the appraiser to value 544 


the whole when the subject of the appraisal is a fractional interest, 545 


physical segment, or a partial holding. However, if the value of the whole 546 


is not identified, the appraisal must clearly reflect that the value of the 547 


property being appraised cannot be used to develop the value opinion of 548 


the whole by mathematical extension. 549 


(h) analyze the relevant economic conditions at the time of the valuation, including 550 


market acceptability of the property and supply, demand, scarcity, or rarity; 551 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 29 


 


(i) identify any extraordinary assumptions and any hypothetical conditions necessary 552 


in the assignment; and 553 


Comment:  An extraordinary assumption may be used in an assignment only if: 554 


 it is required to properly develop credible opinions and conclusions; 555 


 the appraiser has a reasonable basis for the extraordinary assumption; 556 


 use of the extraordinary assumption results in a credible analysis; and 557 


 the appraiser complies with the disclosure requirements set forth in 558 


USPAP for extraordinary assumptions. 559 


A hypothetical condition may be used in an assignment only if: 560 


 use of the hypothetical condition is clearly required for legal purposes, 561 


for purposes of reasonable analysis, or for purposes of comparison; 562 


 use of the hypothetical condition results in a credible analysis; and 563 


 the appraiser complies with the disclosure requirements set forth in 564 


USPAP for hypothetical conditions. 565 


(j) determine the scope of work necessary to produce credible assignment results in 566 


accordance with the SCOPE OF WORK RULE.59 567 


Standards Rule 5-3  568 


When necessary for credible assignment results, an appraiser must: 569 


(a) in appraising real property, identify and analyze the effect on use and value of the 570 


following factors: existing land use regulations, reasonably probable modifications 571 


of such regulations, economic supply and demand, the physical adaptability of the 572 


real estate, neighborhood trends, and highest and best use of the real estate; and 573 


Comment: This requirement sets forth a list of factors that affect use and value. In 574 


considering neighborhood trends, an appraiser must avoid stereotyped or biased 575 


assumptions relating to race, age, color, gender, or national origin or an 576 


assumption that race, ethnic, or religious homogeneity is necessary to maximize 577 


value in a neighborhood. Further, an appraiser must avoid making an unsupported 578 


assumption or premise about neighborhood decline, effective age, and remaining 579 


life. In considering highest and best use, an appraiser must develop the concept to 580 


the extent required for a proper solution to the appraisal problem. 581 


(b) in appraising personal property: identify and analyze the effects on use and value of 582 


industry trends, value-in-use, and trade level of personal property. Where 583 


applicable, analyze the current use and alternative uses to encompass what is 584 


                                                 
59  See Advisory Opinion 28, Scope of Work Decision, Performance, and Disclosure, and Advisory Opinion 29, An Acceptable 


Scope of Work. 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 30 


 


profitable, legal, and physically possible, as relevant to the type and definition of 585 


value and intended use of the appraisal. Personal property has several measurable 586 


marketplaces; therefore, the appraiser must define and analyze the appropriate 587 


market consistent with the type and definition of value. 588 


Comment: The appraiser must recognize that there are distinct levels of trade and 589 


each may generate its own data. For example, a property may have a different 590 


value at a wholesale level of trade, a retail level of trade, or under various auction 591 


conditions. Therefore, the appraiser must analyze the subject property within the 592 


correct market context. 593 


Standards Rule 5-4 594 


In developing a mass appraisal, an appraiser must: 595 


(a) identify the appropriate procedures and market information required to perform 596 


the appraisal, including all physical, functional, and external market factors as they 597 


may affect the appraisal; 598 


Comment: Such efforts customarily include the development of standardized data 599 


collection forms, procedures, and training materials that are used uniformly on the 600 


universe of properties under consideration. 601 


(b)  employ recognized techniques for specifying property valuation models; and 602 


Comment: The formal development of a model in a statement or equation is 603 


called model specification. Mass appraisers must develop mathematical models 604 


that, with reasonable accuracy, represent the relationship between property value 605 


and supply and demand factors, as represented by quantitative and qualitative 606 


property characteristics. The models may be specified using the cost, sales 607 


comparison, or income approaches to value. The specification format may be 608 


tabular, mathematical, linear, nonlinear, or any other structure suitable for 609 


representing the observable property characteristics. Appropriate approaches must 610 


be used in appraising a class of properties. The concept of recognized techniques 611 


applies to both real and personal property valuation models. 612 


(c) employ recognized techniques for calibrating mass appraisal models. 613 


Comment: Calibration refers to the process of analyzing sets of property and 614 


market data to determine the specific parameters of a model. The table entries in a 615 


cost manual are examples of calibrated parameters, as well as the coefficients in a 616 


linear or nonlinear model. Models must be calibrated using recognized 617 


techniques, including, but not limited to, multiple linear regression, nonlinear 618 


regression, and adaptive estimation. 619 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 31 


 


Standards Rule 5-5 620 


In developing a mass appraisal, when necessary for credible assignment results, an 621 


appraiser must: 622 


(a) collect, verify, and analyze such data as are necessary and appropriate to develop: 623 


(i) the cost new of the improvements; 624 


(ii) accrued depreciation; 625 


(iii) value of the land by sales of comparable properties; 626 


(iv) value of the property by sales of comparable properties; 627 


(v) value by capitalization of income or potential earnings (i.e., rentals, expenses, 628 


interest rates, capitalization rates, and vacancy data); 629 


Comment: This Standards Rule requires appraisers engaged in mass appraisal to 630 


take reasonable steps to ensure that the quantity and quality of the factual data that 631 


are collected are sufficient to produce credible appraisals. For example, in real 632 


property, where applicable and feasible, systems for routinely collecting and 633 


maintaining ownership, geographic sales, income and expense, cost, and property 634 


characteristics data must be established. Geographic data must be contained in as 635 


complete a set of cadastral maps as possible, compiled according to current 636 


standards of detail and accuracy. Sales data must be collected, confirmed, 637 


screened, adjusted, and filed according to current standards of practice. The sales 638 


file must contain, for each sale, property characteristics data that are 639 


contemporaneous with the date of sale. Property characteristics data must be 640 


appropriate and relevant to the mass appraisal models being used.  The property 641 


characteristics data file must contain data contemporaneous with the date of 642 


appraisal including historical data on sales, where appropriate and available. The 643 


data collection program must incorporate a quality control program, including 644 


checks and audits of the data to ensure current and consistent records. 645 


(b) base estimates of capitalization rates and projections of future rental rates and/or 646 


potential earnings capacity, expenses, interest rates, and vacancy rates on 647 


reasonable and appropriate evidence; 60 648 


Comment: This requirement calls for an appraiser, in developing income and 649 


expense statements and cash flow projections, to weigh historical information and 650 


trends, current market factors affecting such trends, and reasonably anticipated 651 


                                                 
60 See Advisory Opinion 33, Discounted Cash Flow Analysis. 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 32 


 


events, such as competition from developments either planned or under 652 


construction. 653 


(c) identify and, as applicable, analyze terms and conditions of any available leases; and 654 


(d) identify the need for and extent of any physical inspection.61 655 


Standards Rule 5-6 656 


When necessary for credible assignment results in applying a calibrated mass appraisal 657 


model an appraiser must: 658 


(a) value improved parcels by recognized methods or techniques based on the cost 659 


approach, the sales comparison approach, and income approach; 660 


(b) value sites by recognized methods or techniques; such techniques include but are 661 


not limited to the sales comparison approach, allocation method, abstraction 662 


method, capitalization of ground rent, and land residual technique; 663 


(c) when developing the value of a leased fee estate or a leasehold estate, analyze the 664 


effect on value, if any, of the terms and conditions of the lease; 665 


Comment: In ad valorem taxation the appraiser may be required by rules or law to 666 


appraise the property as if in fee simple, as though unencumbered by existing 667 


leases. In such cases, market rent would be used in the appraisal, ignoring the 668 


effect of the individual, actual contract rents. 669 


(d) analyze the effect on value, if any, of the assemblage of the various parcels, divided 670 


interests, or component parts of a property; the value of the whole must not be 671 


developed by adding together the individual values of the various parcels, divided 672 


interests, or component parts; and 673 


Comment: When the value of the whole has been established and the appraiser 674 


seeks to value a part, the value of any such part must be tested by reference to 675 


appropriate market data and supported by an appropriate analysis of such data. 676 


(e) when analyzing anticipated public or private improvements, located on or off the 677 


site, analyze the effect on value, if any, of such anticipated improvements to the 678 


extent they are reflected in market actions.  679 


Standards Rule 5-7 680 


In reconciling a mass appraisal an appraiser must: 681 


                                                 
61 See Advisory Opinion 2, Inspection of Subject Property. 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 33 


 


(a) reconcile the quality and quantity of data available and analyzed within the 682 


approaches used and the applicability and relevance of the approaches, methods 683 


and techniques used; and 684 


(b) employ recognized mass appraisal testing procedures and techniques to ensure that 685 


standards of accuracy are maintained. 686 


Comment:  It is implicit in mass appraisal that, even when properly specified and 687 


calibrated mass appraisal models are used, some individual value conclusions will 688 


not meet standards of reasonableness, consistency, and accuracy. However, 689 


appraisers engaged in mass appraisal have a professional responsibility to ensure 690 


that, on an overall basis, models produce value conclusions that meet attainable 691 


standards of accuracy. This responsibility requires appraisers to evaluate the 692 


performance of models, using techniques that may include but are not limited to, 693 


goodness-of-fit statistics, and model performance statistics such as appraisal-to-694 


sale ratio studies, evaluation of hold-out samples, or analysis of residuals.   695 


STANDARD 6: MASS APPRAISAL, REPORTING 696 


In reporting the results of a mass appraisal, an appraiser must communicate each analysis, 697 


opinion, and conclusion in a manner that is not misleading. 698 


Comment: STANDARD 6 addresses the content and level of information required 699 


in a report that communicates the results of a mass appraisal.   700 


STANDARD 6 does not dictate the form, format, or style of mass appraisal 701 


reports. The form, format, and style of a report are functions of the needs of 702 


intended users and appraisers. The substantive content of a report determines its 703 


compliance. 704 


Standards Rule 6-1 705 


Each written report of a mass appraisal must: 706 


(a) clearly and accurately set forth the appraisal in a manner that will not be 707 


misleading; 708 


(b) contain sufficient information to enable the intended users of the appraisal to 709 


understand the report properly;  710 


Comment: Documentation for a mass appraisal for ad valorem taxation may be in 711 


the form of (1) property records, (2) sales ratios and other statistical studies, (3) 712 


appraisal manuals and documentation, (4) market studies, (5) model building 713 


documentation, (6) regulations, (7) statutes, and (8) other acceptable forms. 714 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 34 


 


(c) clearly and accurately disclose all assumptions, extraordinary assumptions, 715 


hypothetical conditions, and limiting conditions used in the assignment; 716 


Comment:  The report must clearly and conspicuously: 717 


 state all extraordinary assumptions and hypothetical conditions; and 718 


 state that their use might have affected the assignment results. 719 


Standards Rule 6-2  720 


Each written report of a mass appraisal must: 721 


(i) state the identity of the client, unless the client has specifically requested otherwise; 722 


state the identity of any intended users by name or type;62 723 


Comment:  An appraiser must use care when identifying the client to avoid 724 


violations of the Confidentiality section of the ETHICS RULE.  If a client 725 


requests that the client’s identity be withheld from the report, the appraiser may 726 


comply with this request.  In these instances, the appraiser must document the 727 


identity of the client in the workfile and must state in the report that the identity of 728 


the client has been withheld at the client’s request. 729 


(ii) state the intended use of the appraisal;63 730 


(iii) disclose any assumptions or limiting conditions that result in deviation from 731 


recognized methods and techniques or that affect analyses, opinions, and 732 


conclusions; 733 


(iv) state the effective date of the appraisal and the date of the report; 734 


Comment: In ad valorem taxation the effective date of the appraisal may be 735 


prescribed by law. If no effective date is prescribed by law, the effective date of 736 


the appraisal, if not stated, is presumed to be contemporaneous with the data and 737 


appraisal conclusions. 738 


The effective date of the appraisal establishes the context for the value opinion, 739 


while the date of the report indicates whether the perspective of the appraiser on 740 


the market and property as of the effective date of the appraisal was prospective, 741 


current, or retrospective.64 742 


(v) state the type and definition of value and cite the source of the definition; 743 


                                                 
62  See Advisory Opinion 36, Identification and Disclosure of Client, Intended Use, and Intended Users. 
63  See Advisory Opinion 36, Identification and Disclosure of Client, Intended Use, and Intended Users. 
64  See Advisory Opinion 34, Retrospective and Prospective Value Opinions. 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 35 


 


Comment: Stating the type and definition of value also requires any comments 744 


needed to clearly indicate to intended users how the definition is being applied.65 745 


When reporting an opinion of market value, state whether the opinion of value is: 746 


 In terms of cash or of financing terms equivalent to cash; or 747 


 Based on non-market financing with unusual conditions or incentives. 748 


When an opinion of market value is not in terms of cash or based on financing 749 


terms equivalent to cash, summarize the terms of such financing and explain their 750 


contributions to or negative influence on value. 751 


(vi) state the properties appraised including the property rights; 752 


Comment: The report documents the sources for location, describing and listing 753 


the property. When applicable, include references to legal descriptions, addresses, 754 


parcel identifiers, photos, and building sketches. In mass appraisal this 755 


information is often included in property records. When the property rights to be 756 


appraised are specified in a statute or court ruling, the law must be referenced. 757 


(vii) summarize the scope of work used to develop the appraisal;66 exclusion of the sales 758 


comparison approach, cost approach, or income approach must be explained; 759 


Comment: Because intended users’ reliance on an appraisal may be affected by 760 


the scope of work, the report must enable them to be properly informed and not 761 


misled. Sufficient information includes disclosure of research and analyses 762 


performed and might also include disclosure of research and analyses not 763 


performed. 764 


When any portion of the work involves significant mass appraisal assistance, the 765 


appraiser must describe the extent of that assistance. The signing appraiser must 766 


also state the name(s) of those providing the significant mass appraisal assistance 767 


in the certification, in accordance with Standards Rule 6-3.67 768 


(vii) summarize and support the model specification(s) considered, data requirements, 769 


and the model(s) chosen; 770 


Comment:  The appraiser must provide sufficient information to enable the client 771 


and intended users to have confidence that the process and procedures used 772 


conform to accepted methods and result in credible value conclusions. In the case 773 


of mass appraisal for ad valorem taxation, stability and accuracy are important to 774 


                                                 
65  See Advisory Opinion 34, Retrospective and Prospective Value Opinions. 
66 See Advisory Opinion 28, Scope of Work Decision, Performance, and Disclosure and Advisory Opinion 29, An Acceptable 


Scope of Work 
67 See Advisory Opinion 31, Assignments Involving More than One Appraiser. 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 36 


 


the credibility of value opinions. The report must include a summary of the 775 


rationale for each model, the calibration techniques to be used, and the 776 


performance measures to be used. 777 


(viii) summarize the procedure for collecting, validating, and reporting data; 778 


Comment:  The report must describe the sources of data and the data collection 779 


and validation processes. Reference to detailed data collection manuals or 780 


electronic records must be made, as appropriate, including where they may be 781 


found for inspection. 782 


(ix) summarize calibration methods considered and chosen, including the mathematical 783 


form of the final model(s); summarize how value conclusions were reviewed; and, if 784 


necessary, state the availability and location of individual value conclusions; 785 


(x) when an opinion of highest and best use, or the appropriate market or market level 786 


was developed, summarize how that opinion was determined; 787 


Comment: The mass appraisal report must reference case law, statute, or public 788 


policy that describes highest and best use requirements. When actual use is the 789 


requirement, the report must discuss how use-value opinions were developed. The 790 


appraiser’s reasoning in support of the highest and best use opinion must be 791 


provided in the depth and detail required by its significance to the appraisal. 792 


(xi) identify the appraisal performance tests used and the performance measures 793 


attained; 794 


(xii) summarize the reconciliation performed, in accordance with Standards Rule 5-7; 795 


and 796 


(xiii) include a signed certification in accordance with Standards Rule 6-3. 797 


Standards Rule 6-3 798 


Each written mass appraisal report must contain a signed certification that is similar in 799 
content to the following form:  800 


I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief: 801 


— the statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct. 802 


— the reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the 803 


reported assumptions and limiting conditions, and are my personal, 804 


impartial, and unbiased professional analyses, opinions, and conclusions. 805 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 37 


 


— I have no (or the specified) present or prospective interest in the property 806 


that is the subject of this report, and I have no (or the specified) personal 807 


interest with respect to the parties involved. 808 


— I have performed no (or the specified) services, as an appraiser or in any 809 


other capacity, regarding the property that is the subject of this report 810 


within the three-year period immediately preceding acceptance of this 811 


assignment. 812 


— I have no bias with respect to any property that is the subject of this report 813 


or to the parties involved with this assignment. 814 
— my engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or 815 


reporting predetermined results. 816 


— my compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the 817 


reporting of a predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause 818 


of the client, the amount of the value opinion, the attainment of a stipulated 819 


result, or the occurrence of a subsequent event directly related to the 820 


intended use of this appraisal. 821 


— my analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has 822 


been prepared, in conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional 823 


Appraisal Practice. 824 


— I have (or have not) made a personal inspection of the properties that are the 825 


subject of this report. (If more than one person signs the report, this 826 


certification must clearly specify which individuals did and which individuals 827 


did not make a personal inspection of the appraised property.)68 828 


— no one provided significant mass appraisal assistance to the person signing 829 


this certification. (If there are exceptions, the name of each individual 830 


providing significant mass appraisal assistance must be stated.) 831 


Comment: The above certification is not intended to disturb an elected or 832 


appointed assessor’s work plans or oaths of office.  A signed certification is an 833 


integral part of the appraisal report. An appraiser, who signs any part of the mass 834 


appraisal report, including a letter of transmittal, must also sign this certification. 835 


In an assignment that includes only assignment results developed by the real 836 


property appraiser(s), any appraiser(s) who signs a certification accepts full 837 


responsibility for all elements of the certification, for the assignment results, and 838 


for the contents of the appraisal report.  In an assignment that includes personal 839 


property assignment results not developed by the real property appraiser(s), any 840 


real property appraiser(s) who signs a certification accepts full responsibility for 841 


the real property elements of the certification, for the real property assignment 842 


results, and for the real property contents of the appraisal report. 843 


                                                 
68  See Advisory Opinion 2, Inspection of Subject Property. 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 38 


 


In an assignment that includes only assignment results developed by the personal 844 


property appraiser(s), any appraiser(s) who signs a certification accepts full 845 


responsibility for all elements of the certification, for the assignment results, and 846 


for the contents of the appraisal report.  In an assignment that includes real 847 


property assignment results not developed by the personal property appraiser(s), 848 


any personal property appraiser(s) who signs a certification accepts full 849 


responsibility for the personal property elements of the certification, for the 850 


personal property assignment results, and for the personal property contents of the 851 


appraisal report. 852 


When a signing appraiser(s) has relied on work done by appraisers and others 853 


who do not sign the certification, the signing appraiser is responsible for the 854 


decision to rely on their work. The signing appraiser(s) is required to have a 855 


reasonable basis for believing that those individuals performing the work are 856 


competent.  The signing appraiser(s) also must have no reason to doubt that the 857 


work of those individuals is credible.   858 


The names of individuals providing significant mass appraisal assistance who do 859 


not sign a certification must be stated in the certification. It is not required that the 860 


description of their assistance be contained in the certification, but disclosure of 861 


their assistance is required in accordance with Standards Rule 6-2(vii).69  862 


  


                                                 
69  See Advisory Opinion 31, Assignments Involving More than One Appraiser. 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 39 


 


Section 6:   Standards Rules 7-2(c), SR 7-5, and 8-2(v)  


RATIONALE 


The ASB is proposing to revise Standards Rules 7-2(c), 7-5, 8-2(a)(v), 8-2(a)(viii) and 8-


2(b)(viii). As currently written, these Standards Rules include requirements that are limited to 


developing and reporting opinions of market value.  


Since the type of value in personal property appraisals is rarely market value, these references to 


market value may be confusing and may lead to limitations in the scope of personal property 


appraisal development and reporting.  


The ASB is proposing to remove the market value references in the Standards Rules noted above 


in order to clarify that certain tasks are not limited to market value assignments but are required 


whenever necessary for credible assignment results. 


This change has resulted in a new requirement that the personal property appraiser ascertain and 


state in every appraisal whether the opinion of value is in terms of cash or of financing terms 


equivalent to cash or if it is based on non-market financing or financing with unusual conditions 


or incentives.  


This requirement will be met if the appraisal includes a definition of value that clearly specifies 


the terms and if, when an opinion of value is not in terms of cash or based on financing terms 


equivalent to cash, the appraiser summarizes the terms of such financing and explains their 


contributions to or negative influence on value. 


Standards Rule 7-2 863 


In developing a personal property appraisal, an appraiser must: 864 


(a) identify the client and other intended users; 865 


(b) identify the intended use of the appraiser’s opinions and conclusions; 866 


Comment: An appraiser must not allow the intended use of an assignment or a 867 


client’s objectives to cause the assignment results to be biased. 868 


(c) identify the type and definition of value, and If the value opinion to be developed is 869 


market value, ascertain whether the value is to be the most probable price: 870 


  (i) in terms of cash; or 871 


(ii) in terms of financial arrangements equivalent to cash; or 872 


(iii) in other precisely defined terms; and 873 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 40 


 


(iv) if the opinion of value is to be based on non-market financing or financing 874 


with unusual conditions or incentives, the terms of such financing must be 875 


clearly identified and the appraiser’s opinion of their contributions to or 876 


negative influence on value must be developed by analysis of relevant market 877 


data; 878 


Comment:  When reasonable exposure time is a component of the 879 


definition for the value opinion being developed, the appraiser must also 880 


develop an opinion of reasonable exposure time linked to that value 881 


opinion. 882 


(d) identify the effective date of the appraiser’s opinions and conclusions; 883 


(e) identify the characteristics of the property that are relevant to the type and 884 


definition of value and intended use of the appraisal, including: 885 


(i) sufficient characteristics to establish the identity of the item including the 886 


method of identification; 887 


(ii) sufficient characteristics to establish the relative quality of the item (and its 888 


component parts, where applicable) within its type; 889 


(iii) all other physical and economic attributes with a material effect on value; 890 


Comment: Some examples of physical and economic characteristics 891 


include condition, style, size, quality, manufacturer, author, materials, 892 


origin, age, provenance, alterations, restorations, and obsolescence. The 893 


type of property, the type and definition of value, and intended use of the 894 


appraisal determine which characteristics have a material effect on value. 895 


(iv) the ownership interest to be valued; 896 


(v) any known restrictions, encumbrances, leases, covenants, contracts, 897 


declarations, special assessments, ordinances, or other items of a similar 898 


nature if relevant to the assignment; and 899 


(vi) any real property or intangible items that are not personal property but 900 


which are included in the appraisal; 901 


Comment on (i)–(vi): The information used by an appraiser to identify the 902 


property characteristics must be from sources the appraiser reasonably 903 


believes are reliable. 904 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 41 


 


An appraiser may use any combination of a property inspection and 905 


documents or other resources to identify the relevant characteristics of the 906 


subject property. 907 


When appraising proposed modifications, an appraiser must examine and 908 


have available for future examination, documentation sufficient to identify 909 


the extent and character of the proposed modifications. 910 


An appraiser may not be required to value the whole when the subject of 911 


the appraisal is a fractional interest, a physical segment, or a partial 912 


holding. 913 


(f) identify any extraordinary assumptions necessary in the assignment; 914 


Comment: An extraordinary assumption may be used in an assignment only if: 915 


 it is required to properly develop credible opinions and conclusions; 916 


 the appraiser has a reasonable basis for the extraordinary assumption; 917 


 use of the extraordinary assumption results in a credible analysis; and 918 


 the appraiser complies with the disclosure requirements set forth in 919 


USPAP for extraordinary assumptions. 920 


(g) identify any hypothetical conditions necessary in the assignment; and 921 


Comment: A hypothetical condition may be used in an assignment only if: 922 


 use of the hypothetical condition is clearly required for legal purposes, for 923 


purposes of reasonable analysis, or for purposes of comparison; 924 


 use of the hypothetical condition results in a credible analysis; and 925 


 the appraiser complies with the disclosure requirements set forth in 926 


USPAP for hypothetical conditions. 927 


(h) determine the scope of work necessary to produce credible assignment results in 928 


accordance with the SCOPE OF WORK RULE. 929 


Standards Rule 7-5  930 


When necessary for credible assignment results developing an opinion of market value, an 931 


appraiser must, if such information is available to the appraiser in the normal course of 932 


business: 933 


(a) analyze all agreements of sale, validated offers or third-party offers to sell, options, 934 


and listings of the subject property current as of the effective date of the appraisal if 935 


warranted by the intended use of the appraisal; and 936 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 42 


 


 (b) analyze all prior sales of the subject property that occurred within a reasonable and 937 


applicable time period if relevant given the intended use of the appraisal and 938 


property type. 939 


Comment:  The data needed for the required analyses in Standards Rule 7-5(a) 940 


and 7-5(b) may not be available or relevant in all assignments. See the Comments 941 


to Standards Rules 8-2(a)(viii) and 8-2(b)(viii) for corresponding reporting 942 


requirements. 943 


Standards Rule 8-2  944 


Each written personal property appraisal report must be prepared under one of the 945 


following options and prominently state which option is used: Appraisal Report or 946 
Restricted Appraisal Report. 947 


Comment: When the intended users include parties other than the client, an 948 


Appraisal Report must be provided. When the intended users do not include 949 


parties other than the client, a Restricted Appraisal Report may be provided. 950 


The essential difference between these two options is in the content and level of 951 


information provided. The appropriate reporting option and the level of 952 


information necessary in the report are dependent on the intended use and 953 


intended users. 954 


An appraiser must use care when characterizing the type of report and level of 955 


information communicated upon completion of an assignment. An appraiser may 956 


use any other label in addition to, but not in place of, the label set forth in this 957 


Standard for the type of report provided. 958 


The report content and level of information requirements set forth in this Standard 959 


are minimums for each type of report. An appraiser must supplement a report 960 


form, when necessary, to ensure that any intended user of the appraisal is not 961 


misled and that the report complies with the applicable content requirements set 962 


forth in this Standards Rule. 963 


A party receiving a copy of an Appraisal Report or Restricted Appraisal Report in 964 


order to satisfy disclosure requirements does not become an intended user of the 965 


appraisal unless the appraiser identifies such party as an intended user as part of 966 


the assignment. 967 


(a) The content of an Appraisal Report must be consistent with the intended use of the 968 


appraisal and, at a minimum:  969 


(i) state the identity of the client, unless the client has specifically requested 970 


otherwise; state the identity of any intended users by name or type;  971 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 43 


 


Comment:  An appraiser must use care when identifying the client to 972 


avoid violations of the Confidentiality section of the ETHICS RULE.  If a 973 


client requests that the client’s identity be withheld from the report, the 974 


appraiser may comply with this request.  In these instances, the appraiser 975 


must document the identity of the client in the workfile and must state in 976 


the report that the identity of the client has been withheld at the client’s 977 


request.  978 


Types of intended users of the report might include parties such as lenders, 979 


employees of government agencies, partners of a client, and a client’s 980 


attorney and accountant. 981 


(ii) state the intended use of the appraisal; 982 


(iii) summarize information sufficient to identify the property involved in the 983 


appraisal, including the physical and economic property characteristics 984 


relevant to the assignment; 985 


(iv) state the property interest appraised; 986 


(v) state the type and definition of value and cite the source of the definition; 987 


Comment: Stating the definition of value also requires any comments 988 


needed to clearly indicate to the intended users how the definition is being 989 


applied. 990 


When reporting an opinion of market value, state whether the opinion of 991 


value is: 992 


 in terms of cash or of financing terms equivalent to cash, or  993 


 based on non-market financing or financing with unusual 994 


conditions or incentives. 995 


When an opinion of market value is not in terms of cash or based on 996 


financing terms equivalent to cash, summarize the terms of such financing 997 


and explain their contributions to or negative influence on value. 998 


When an opinion of reasonable exposure time has been developed in 999 


compliance with Standards Rule 7-2(c), the opinion must be stated in the 1000 


report.  1001 


(vi) state the effective date of the appraisal and the date of the report;  1002 


Comment: The effective date of the appraisal establishes the context for 1003 


the value opinion, while the date of the report indicates whether the 1004 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 44 


 


perspective of the appraiser on the market and property as of the effective 1005 


date of the appraisal was prospective, current, or retrospective. 1006 


(vii) summarize the scope of work used to develop the appraisal; 1007 


Comment: Because intended users’ reliance on an appraisal may be 1008 


affected by the scope of work, the report must enable them to be properly 1009 


informed and not misled. Sufficient information includes disclosure of 1010 


research and analyses performed and might also include disclosure of 1011 


research and analyses not performed. 1012 


When any portion of the work involves significant personal property 1013 


appraisal assistance, the appraiser must summarize the extent of that 1014 


assistance. The name(s) of those providing the significant personal 1015 


property appraisal assistance must be stated in the certification, in 1016 


accordance with Standards Rule 8-3. 1017 


(viii) summarize the information analyzed, the appraisal methods and techniques 1018 


employed, and the reasoning that supports the analyses, opinions, and 1019 


conclusions; exclusion of the sales comparison approach, cost approach, or 1020 


income approach must be explained;  1021 


Comment: An Appraisal Report must include sufficient information to 1022 


indicate that the appraiser complied with the requirements of STANDARD 1023 


7. The amount of detail required will vary with the significance of the 1024 


information to the appraisal and with the significance of a particular object 1025 


or group of objects to the overall assignment results. 1026 


The appraiser must provide sufficient information to enable the client and 1027 


intended users to understand the rationale for the opinion and conclusions, 1028 


including reconciliation of the data and approaches, in accordance with 1029 


Standards Rule 7-6. 1030 


When reporting an opinion of market value, a summary of the results of 1031 


the analysis of the subject sales, offers, options, and listings in accordance 1032 


with Standards Rule 7-5 is necessary. In accordance with Standards Rule 1033 


7-5, when the appraiser has developed an analysis of agreements of sale, 1034 


validated offers or third-party offers to sell, options, listings or prior sales 1035 


of the subject property, the appraiser must report a summary of the results 1036 


of the analysis. If such information was unobtainable, a statement on the 1037 


efforts undertaken by the appraiser to obtain the information is required. If 1038 


such information is irrelevant, a statement acknowledging the existence of 1039 


the information and citing its lack of relevance is required. 1040 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 45 


 


(ix) state, as appropriate to the class of personal property involved, the use of the 1041 


property existing as of the date of value and the use of the property reflected 1042 


in the appraisal;  1043 


Comment: In the context of personal property, value can be a function of 1044 


the current and alternative use of the subject property, the choice of the 1045 


appropriate market or market level for the type of item, the type and 1046 


definition of value, and intended use of the report. 1047 


(x)  when an opinion of the appropriate market or market level was developed by 1048 


the appraiser, summarize the support and rationale for that opinion; 1049 


(xi) clearly and conspicuously: 1050 


 state all extraordinary assumptions and hypothetical 1051 


conditions; and 1052 


 state that their use might have affected the assignment results; 1053 


and 1054 


(xii) include a signed certification in accordance with Standards Rule 8-3. 1055 


(b) The content of a Restricted Appraisal Report must be consistent with the intended 1056 


use of the appraisal and, at a minimum:  1057 


(i) state the identity of the client, unless the client has specifically requested 1058 


otherwise; and state a prominent use restriction that limits use of the report 1059 


to the client and warns that the rationale for how the appraiser arrived at the 1060 


opinions and conclusions set forth in the report may not be understood 1061 


properly without additional information in the appraiser’s workfile; 1062 


Comment: An appraiser must use care when identifying the client to avoid 1063 


violations of the Confidentiality section of the ETHICS RULE.  If a client 1064 


requests that the client’s identity be withheld from the report, the appraiser 1065 


may comply with this request.  In these instances, the appraiser must 1066 


document the identity of the client in the workfile and must state in the 1067 


report that the identity of the client has been withheld at the client’s 1068 


request. 1069 


The Restricted Appraisal Report is for client use only. Before entering into 1070 


an agreement, the appraiser should establish with the client the situations 1071 


where this type of report is to be used and should ensure that the client 1072 


understands the restricted utility of the Restricted Appraisal Report. 1073 


(ii) state the intended use of the appraisal; 1074 


2302 
 


2303 


 


2304 


 


2307 
 2308 
 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 46 


 


Comment: The intended use of the appraisal must be consistent with the 1075 


limitation on use of the Restricted Appraisal Report option in this 1076 


Standards Rule (i.e., client use only). 1077 


(iii) state information sufficient to identify the property involved in the appraisal; 1078 


(iv) state the property interest appraised; 1079 


(v) state the type of value and cite the source of its definition; 1080 


Comment: When an opinion of reasonable exposure time has been 1081 


developed in compliance with Standards Rule 7-2(c), the opinion must be 1082 


stated in the report. 1083 


(vi) state the effective date of the appraisal and the date of the report; 1084 


Comment: The effective date of the appraisal establishes the context for 1085 


the value opinion, while the date of the report indicates whether the 1086 


perspective of the appraiser on the market and property as of the effective 1087 


date of the appraisal was prospective, current, or retrospective. 1088 


(vii) state the scope of work used to develop the appraisal; 1089 


Comment: Because the client’s reliance on an appraisal may be affected by 1090 


the scope of work, the report must enable them to be properly informed 1091 


and not misled. Sufficient information includes disclosure of research and 1092 


analyses performed and might also include disclosure of research and 1093 


analyses not performed. 1094 


When any portion of the work involves significant personal property 1095 


appraisal assistance, the appraiser must state the extent of that assistance. 1096 


The name(s) of those providing the significant personal property appraisal 1097 


assistance must be stated in the certification, in accordance with Standards 1098 


Rule 8-3. 1099 


(viii) state the appraisal methods and techniques employed, state the value 1100 


opinion(s) and conclusion(s) reached, and reference the workfile; exclusion of 1101 


the sales comparison approach, cost approach, or income approach must be 1102 


explained;  1103 


Comment: An appraiser must maintain a specific, coherent workfile in 1104 


support of a Restricted Appraisal Report. The contents of the workfile 1105 


must include sufficient information to indicate that the appraiser complied 1106 


with the requirements of STANDARD 7 and for the appraiser to produce 1107 


an Appraisal Report.  1108 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 47 


 


When reporting an opinion of market value, iInformation analyzed in 1109 


compliance with Standards Rule 7-5 is significant information that must 1110 


be disclosed in a Restricted Appraisal Report. If such information was 1111 


unobtainable, a statement on the efforts undertaken by the appraiser to 1112 


obtain the information is required. If such information is irrelevant, a 1113 


statement acknowledging the existence of the information and citing its 1114 


lack of relevance is required. 1115 


(ix) state, as appropriate to the class of personal property involved, the use of the 1116 


property existing as of the date of value and the use of the property reflected 1117 


in the appraisal;  1118 


Comment: In the context of personal property, value can be a function of 1119 


the current and alternative use of the subject property, the choice of the 1120 


appropriate market or market level for the type of item, the type and 1121 


definition of value, and intended use of the report. 1122 


(x) when an opinion of the appropriate market or market level was developed by 1123 


the appraiser, state that opinion;  1124 


(xi) clearly and conspicuously: 1125 


 state all extraordinary assumptions and hypothetical 1126 


conditions; and 1127 


 state that their use might have affected the assignment results; 1128 


and 1129 


(xii) include a signed certification in accordance with Standards Rule 8-3. 1130 


  


2302 
 


2303 


 


2304 


 


2307 
 2308 
 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 48 


 


Section 7: Standards Rule 8-3 


RATIONALE 


The ASB is reviewing Standard Rule 8-3. As currently written, when appraisers of multiple 


personal property specialties collaborate in a personal property assignment, each appraiser 


signing the certification is responsible for all aspects of the appraisal.  


This is contrary to current practice and could be misleading or confusing to the clients and users 


of personal property appraisers.   


In this exposure draft, the ASB is proposing the addition of clarifying language to the Comment 


to Standard Rule 8-3. This would allow personal property appraisers to sign the certification in 


an assignment involving different types of items without making them accountable for the 


assignment results of items they did not appraise. The comment also adds a reporting 


requirement that discloses the role each appraiser has in the assignment. 


In an assignment of this type, as it is likely that the appraisers are not competent to appraise 


items outside of their specialty, this change will foster public trust in personal property 


appraisals. 


The proposed addition to the Comment to Standards Rule 8-3 follows.   


Standards Rule 8-3  1131 


Each written personal property appraisal report must contain a signed certification that is 1132 
similar in content to the following form: 1133 


I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief: 1134 


— the statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct.  1135 


— the reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the 1136 


reported assumptions and limiting conditions and are my personal, 1137 


impartial, and unbiased professional analyses, opinions, and conclusions.  1138 


— I have no (or the specified) present or prospective interest in the property 1139 


that is the subject of this report and no (or the specified) personal interest 1140 


with respect to the parties involved. 1141 


— I have performed no (or the specified) services, as an appraiser or in any 1142 


other capacity, regarding the property that is the subject of this report 1143 


within the three-year period immediately preceding acceptance of this 1144 


assignment. 1145 


— I have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report 1146 


or to the parties involved with this assignment.  1147 


— my engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or 1148 


reporting predetermined results.  1149 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 49 


 


— my compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the 1150 


development or reporting of a predetermined value or direction in value 1151 


that favors the cause of the client, the amount of the value opinion, the 1152 


attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence of a subsequent event 1153 


directly related to the intended use of this appraisal.  1154 


— my analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has 1155 


been prepared, in conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional 1156 


Appraisal Practice.  1157 


— I have (or have not) made a personal inspection of the property that is the 1158 


subject of this report. (If more than one person signs this certification, the 1159 


certification must clearly specify which individuals did and which 1160 


individuals did not make a personal inspection of the appraised property.)  1161 


— no one provided significant personal property appraisal assistance to the 1162 


person signing this certification. (If there are exceptions, the name of each 1163 


individual providing significant personal property appraisal assistance 1164 


must be stated.)  1165 


Comment: A signed certification is an integral part of the appraisal report. An 1166 


appraiser who signs any part of the appraisal report, including a letter of 1167 


transmittal, must also sign this certification. In an assignment that includes only 1168 


assignment results developed by the personal property appraiser(s) from the same 1169 


personal property specialty, any appraiser(s) who signs a certification accepts full 1170 


responsibility for all elements of the certification, for the assignment results, and 1171 


for the contents of the appraisal report. In an assignment involving appraisers with 1172 


expertise in different personal property specialties (e.g., antiques, fine art, 1173 


machinery and equipment), an appraiser who signs the certification may accept 1174 


responsibility only for the elements of the certification, assignment results, and 1175 


report contents specific to the appraiser’s discipline. When appraisers from 1176 


different personal property specialties sign the certification, the role of each 1177 


appraiser signing the certification must be stated in the report.    1178 


In an assignment that includes real property, business or intangible asset 1179 


assignment results not developed by the personal property appraiser(s), any 1180 


personal property appraiser(s) who signs a certification accepts full responsibility 1181 


for the personal property elements of the certification, for the personal property 1182 


assignment results, and for the personal property contents of the appraisal report. 1183 


When a signing appraiser(s) has relied on work done by appraisers and others 1184 


who do not sign the certification, the signing appraiser is responsible for the 1185 


decision to rely on their work. The signing appraiser(s) is required to have a 1186 


reasonable basis for believing that those individuals performing the work are 1187 


competent. The signing appraiser(s) also must have no reason to doubt that the 1188 


work of those individuals is credible. 1189 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 50 


 


The names of individuals providing significant personal property appraisal 1190 


assistance who do not sign a certification must be stated in the certification. It is 1191 


not required that the description of their assistance be contained in the 1192 


certification, but disclosure of their assistance is required in accordance with 1193 


Standards Rule 8-2(a)(vii) or 8-2(b)(vii) as applicable.  1194 


  







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 51 


 


Section 8 Advisory Opinion 37, Computer Assisted Valuation Tools  


RATIONALE 


Advisory Opinion 18, Use of an Automated Valuation Model (AVM), was adopted by the ASB in 


1997 and first appeared in the 1998 edition of USPAP. It was added to provide guidance in the 


application of AVM software. AVMs enabled real property appraisers to analyze large pools of 


sales data in ways that were previously not practical. Today, not only are there newer and more 


advanced valuation tools, but AVMs themselves have evolved in ways that make much of AO-


18 obsolete.  


In an effort to keep its guidance current, the ASB is proposing retiring AO-18, and replacing it 


with Advisory Opinion 37, Computer Assisted Valuation Tools.  AO-37 is intended to provide 


guidance in the use of computer assisted valuation tools now used by appraisers. The ASB has 


intentionally tried to keep the advice as broad as possible, in anticipation that additional new 


tools are likely to be developed in the future.   


ADVISORY OPINION 37 (AO-37) 1195 


This communication by the Appraisal Standards Board (ASB) does not establish new standards 1196 


or interpret existing standards. Advisory Opinions are issued to illustrate the applicability of 1197 


appraisal standards in specific situations and to offer advice from the ASB for the resolution of 1198 


appraisal issues and problems.  1199 


SUBJECT:  Computer Assisted Valuation Tools 1200 


APPLICATION: Real Property 1201 


THE ISSUE: 1202 


Appraisers typically rely upon market data as the basis for their opinions and conclusions. This 1203 


data is used by appraisers to analyze and report on market trend information (e.g., median sale 1204 


prices, rent trends, marketing time, etc.), the impact different features have on their subject’s 1205 


value (i.e., appropriate adjustments), and even market value itself (e.g., using sales of vacant land 1206 


to develop a value per acre of their subject site).  1207 


Appraisers have access to technology that enables them to automate some aspects of the 1208 


appraisal process. They can generate information that once had to be calculated by hand. The 1209 


information generated by this technology can enable appraisers to produce appraisals and 1210 


appraisal reviews with greater credibility, but its misuse can have the opposite effect. What steps 1211 


should an appraiser take to comply with USPAP when using information generated by these 1212 


types of resources? 1213 


BACKGROUND: 1214 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 52 


 


This Advisory Opinion addresses an appraiser’s obligations when relying upon values, prices, 1215 


adjustments, trends, or other information generated by software or various online services. 1216 


Examples of these tools include: 1217 


 Automated Valuation Models (AVM): These provide real estate property value estimates 1218 


using mathematical modeling combined with a large database. Although these services 1219 


are now available directly to consumers on the Internet, some services provide data useful 1220 


to appraisers. 1221 


 Regression Analysis Tools: Regression analysis is a statistical process used for 1222 


determining relationships among variables. For example, an appraiser may wish to 1223 


determine if the market recognizes a relationship between the size of a property and its 1224 


price per square foot. 1225 


 Multiple Listing Services: These services publish listings of properties for sale in a given 1226 


marketplace. Typically, these services can provide subscribers with an analysis of past 1227 


sale trends, such as average prices, sales volume, days on market, etc. 1228 


These are only examples; there are numerous others. The analytical methods the appraiser relies 1229 


upon may be different from assignment to assignment. These types of analytical tools are distinct 1230 


from discounted cash flow tools1 and related technology in that these contain a database used to 1231 


answer specific requests for information. The appraiser must be able to support the chosen 1232 


parameters that are used as inputs to the tool. 1233 


Stand-alone software or various online services can be useful tools that allow appraisers to 1234 


enhance their appraisals. Some residential lenders are increasingly requiring appraisers to 1235 


provide additional support for their adjustments. Appraisers sometimes meet this request by 1236 


providing a regression analysis. There are software packages available to appraisers that make 1237 


this analysis relatively simple. Some residential form-filling software vendors include this 1238 


function as an integral part of their product.  1239 


For example, since 2009, Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae have required that appraisal reports 1240 


include a completed Market Conditions Addendum (Freddie Mac Form 71 / Fannie Mae Form 1241 


1004MC). The instructions, read, in part: 1242 


“The appraiser must use the information required on this form as the basis for his/her 1243 


conclusions, and must provide support for those conclusions, regarding housing trends 1244 


and overall market conditions as reported in the Neighborhood section of the appraisal 1245 


report form.”  1246 


Many modern Multiple Listing Services now have integrated analytical tools to accommodate 1247 


the needs of their appraiser members in preparing this form. 1248 


                                                 
1 See Advisory Opinion 33, Discounted Cash Flow Analysis 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 53 


 


Trend analysis, regression analysis, matched pair analysis, graphing, highest and best use 1249 


analysis, and automatic cost approach calculations are examples of tasks which can be less 1250 


cumbersome with the advancements in computer software. 1251 


ADVICE FROM THE ASB ON THE ISSUE: 1252 


The COMPETENCY RULE specifically states that competency may apply to an analytical 1253 


method. Technology that performs various statistical analyses is simple to use but still requires 1254 


some degree of competence. The instructions to Form 71/1004MC read: 1255 


“Sales and listings must be properties that compete with the subject property, determined 1256 


by applying the criteria that would be used by a prospective buyer of the subject 1257 


property.” 1258 


Standards Rule 1-1(b) states that the appraiser must not commit a substantial error of omission or 1259 


commission that significantly affects an appraisal. When using computer assisted valuation tools, 1260 


the appraiser is responsible both for selecting the appropriate input parameters and also for being 1261 


proficient in the use of the technology to ensure the correct input of those parameters. If either of 1262 


these criteria is not met, the information provided may not provide credible results. Depending 1263 


on how the appraiser relies upon this data, inappropriate information may impact the results of 1264 


the assignment. 1265 


Appraisers must also have at least a basic understanding of statistical analysis. A calculation of 1266 


both the mean (average) and median of a given data set typically yield different results. Either 1267 


may be appropriate for use but it is the appraiser’s responsibility to make that determination. 1268 


Proper application of these results must also be consistent. For example, it would not be 1269 


appropriate to compare the mean sale price of office space in one year to the median sale price of 1270 


office space from a different year. Likewise, an appraiser should not employ terminology (e.g., 1271 


standard deviation, coefficient of variation, etc.) without understanding what that terminology 1272 


means.  1273 


Regression analysis is based upon complex calculations. An appraiser need not be able to 1274 


duplicate those calculations, but must understand how to use the results. He or she must be able 1275 


to recognize a graph that shows a strong relationship between the variables and one that does not. 1276 


Reliance on a weak correlation of the data will directly impact the credibility of the conclusion 1277 


drawn using that information.  1278 


Much like data obtained from a Multiple Listing Service, the appraiser must also be aware of 1279 


what information is used as the input and how to properly apply the output. A regression analysis 1280 


that correlates the sale prices per acre of land sales to the size of each lot may either be based 1281 


upon the unadjusted or adjusted sale prices. If unadjusted, the appraiser may need to perform 1282 


additional analysis before applying the result to the subject.  1283 


Automated Valuation Models (AVM) are somewhat different than other data analysis tools in 1284 


that the output is specific to a single property. Although an AVM does provide a value estimate, 1285 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 54 


 


that output is not, by itself, an appraisal. An AVM’s output may become a basis for appraisal or 1286 


appraisal review if the appraiser believes the output to be credible for use in a specific 1287 


assignment. In this case, the appraiser must exercise care to ensure compliance with 1288 


STANDARD 1 and STANDARD 2. 1289 


An appraiser can use an AVM as a tool in the development of an appraisal or appraisal review. 1290 


However, the appropriate use of an AVM is, like any tool, dependent upon the skill of the user 1291 


and the tool’s suitability to the task at hand. 1292 


When using any of these analytical tools, the appraiser is responsible for the accuracy of the 1293 


results. Thus, the appraiser must have confidence that the technology uses data that is relevant 1294 


and that the output is mathematically correct and sufficiently reliable for use in the assignment. 1295 


Regardless of the tool chosen, the appraiser is responsible for the entire analysis including the 1296 


controlling input, the calculations, and the resulting output. An appraiser should use sufficient 1297 


care to avoid errors that would significantly affect his or her opinions and conclusions. Diligence 1298 


is required to identify and analyze the factors, conditions, data, and other information that would 1299 


have a significant effect on the credibility of the assignment results. 1300 


Through the use of technology a fully documented workfile can be created in a few minutes. 1301 


While it may not always be necessary to include any charts, lists, graphs, etc. the tools generate, 1302 


doing so may be required by Standards Rule 2-2(a)(viii), which stipulates, in part:  1303 


The content of an Appraisal Report must be consistent with the intended use of the 1304 


appraisal and, at a minimum:  summarize the information analyzed, the appraisal 1305 


methods and techniques employed, and the reasoning that supports the analyses, 1306 


opinions, and conclusions.  1307 


Likewise, the RECORD KEEPING RULE requires that the workfile include: 1308 


…all other data, information, and documentation necessary to support the appraiser’s 1309 


opinions and conclusions and to show compliance with USPAP, or references to the 1310 


location(s) of such other data, information, and documentation. 1311 


SUMMARY: 1312 


 The information generated by these types of valuation tools is merely a calculation that 1313 


once had to be calculated by hand. It is not a substitute for an appraiser’s judgment. 1314 


 A number of intended users and intended uses now require reporting of additional and 1315 


more specific data, which, until now, would have been prohibitively difficult for an 1316 


appraiser to provide in the routine course of business. 1317 


 Appraisers may find analytic tools useful for supporting their adjustments.  1318 







 


First Exposure Draft of Changes for the 2018-19 USPAP 55 


 


 Regardless of the tool chosen, the appraiser is responsible for the entire analysis 1319 


including the controlling input, the calculations, and the resulting output. 1320 


 It is the responsibility of the appraiser to ensure that the input parameters are appropriate. 1321 


 Appraisers must be proficient in the use of their chosen technology to ensure that they 1322 


have correctly selected and input appropriate parameters.  1323 


 If the appropriate parameters are not correctly entered into the program, the information 1324 


provided may not either meet the needs of the assignment or provide credible results. 1325 


 Reliance upon inappropriate information may create assignment results that are not 1326 


credible. 1327 


 Appraisers must have a basic understanding of statistical analysis and not employ 1328 


terminology and/or methodology with which they are not familiar.  1329 


 Automated Valuation Models generate output specific to a single property. 1330 


 An AVM’s output may become a basis for an appraisal or appraisal review if the 1331 


appraiser believes the output to be credible for use in that assignment.  1332 


 An appraiser must exercise care to ensure compliance with STANDARDS 1 and 2 and 1333 


the RECORD KEEPING RULE, if the output is used for an assignment result. 1334 


 


 












 
Appraisal Subcommittee 


Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council 


1401 H Street, NW  Suite 760  Washington, DC 20005  (202) 289-2735  Fax (202) 289-4101 
 
 
 


 
      June 28, 2016 
       
 
 
Mr. Robert D. Charlton, Superintendent  
AZ Department of Financial Institutions 
Real Estate Appraisal Division 
2910 N. 44th Street, Suite 310,  
Phoenix, AZ 85018 
 
RE:  ASC Compliance Review of Arizona’s Appraiser Regulatory Program 
 
Dear Mr. Charlton: 
 
 The Appraisal Subcommittee (ASC) staff conducted an ASC Compliance Review (Review) 
of the Arizona appraiser regulatory program (Program) on June7-8, 2016, to determine the 
Program’s compliance with Title XI of the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery, and 
Enforcement Act of 1989, as amended.    
 
 The ASC considered the preliminary results of the Review and the State’s response to those 
results.  The Program has been awarded an ASC Finding of “Excellent.”  Arizona will remain on 
a two-year Review Cycle.  The final ASC Compliance Review Report (Report) is attached.  


 
 This letter and the attached Report are public records and available on the ASC website.  
Please contact us if you have any questions about this Report.    
 
   Sincerely, 
 
 
         
    James R. Park     
    Executive Director 
 


 
Attachment 
cc: Debra Rudd, Division Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







ASC Finding Descriptions 
 


 


ASC  
Finding 


Rating Criteria Review Cycle*  


Excellent 


• State meets all Title XI mandates and complies with requirements 
of ASC Policy Statements 


• State maintains a strong regulatory Program 
• Very low risk of Program failure 


2-year 


Good 


• State meets the majority of Title XI mandates and complies with 
the majority of ASC Policy Statement requirements 


• Deficiencies are minor in nature 
• State is adequately addressing deficiencies identified and 


correcting them in the normal course of business 
• State maintains an effective regulatory Program 
• Low risk of Program failure 


2-year 


Needs 
Improvement 


• State does not meet all Title XI mandates and does not comply 
with all requirements of ASC Policy Statements  


• Deficiencies are material but manageable and if not corrected in a 
timely manner pose a potential risk to the Program 


• State may have a history of repeated deficiencies but is showing 
progress toward correcting deficiencies 


• State regulatory Program needs improvement 
• Moderate risk of Program failure 


2-year with 
additional monitoring 


Not Satisfactory 


• State does not meet all Title XI mandates and does not comply 
with all requirements of ASC Policy Statements 


• Deficiencies present a significant risk and if not corrected in a 
timely manner pose a well-defined risk to the Program  


• State may have a history of repeated deficiencies and requires 
more supervision to ensure corrective actions are progressing 


• State regulatory Program has substantial deficiencies 
• Substantial risk of Program failure 


1-year 


Poor1 


• State does not meet Title XI mandates and does not comply with 
requirements of ASC Policy Statements 


• Deficiencies are significant and severe, require immediate 
attention and if not corrected represent critical flaws in the 
Program 


• State may have a history of repeated deficiencies and may show a 
lack of willingness or ability to correct deficiencies   


• High risk of Program failure 


Continuous 
monitoring 


*Program history or nature of deficiency may warrant a more accelerated Review Cycle. 
 
 
     


                                                 
1 An ASC Finding of “Poor” may result in significant consequences to the State.  See Policy Statement 5, Reciprocity; see also 
Policy Statement 8, Interim Sanctions. 
 







Page 1 of 1


ASC Finding: Excellent
Final Report Issue Date: June 28, 2016


PM:  N. Fenochietti Review Period: April 2014 to June 2016
Review Cycle: Two Year


Applicable Federal Citations ASC Staff Observations State Response Required/Recommended State Actions General Comments


YES NO AC
Statutes, Regulations, Policies 
and Procedures: X


No compliance issues noted. N/A None None
Temporary Practice: X


No compliance issues noted. N/A None None
National Registry: X


No compliance issues noted. N/A None None
Application Process: X


No compliance issues noted. N/A None None
Reciprocity: X


No compliance issues noted. N/A None None
Education: X


No compliance issues noted. N/A None None
Enforcement: X


No compliance issues noted. N/A None None


ASC Compliance Review Report


Umbrella Agency:  Arizona Department of Financial Institutions (Department)


Compliance (YES/NO) 
Areas of Concern (AC)  


ASC Compliance Review Date:  June 7-8, 2016
Number of State Credentialed Appraisers on National Registry:  2,045


Arizona Appraiser Regulatory Program (State)
Board:  N/A





		RPT AZ  Final Compliance Review 06.13.2016.pdf

		FinalReport



		RPT AZ  Final Compliance Review 06.13.2016.pdf

		FinalReport








 
Appraisal Subcommittee 


Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council 


1401 H Street, NW Suite 760 Washington, DC 20005 (202) 289-2735  Fax (202) 289-4101  
 
 


      May 26, 2016 
 
 
Mr. Lee Gordon, Executive Director 
Arkansas Appraiser Licensing and Certification Board 
101 E. Capitol, Suite 430 
Little Rock, AR  72201 
 
 
RE:  ASC Compliance Review of Arkansas’ Appraiser Regulatory Program 
 
Dear Mr. Gordon: 
 
 The Appraisal Subcommittee (ASC) staff conducted an ASC Compliance Review (Review) 
of the Arkansas appraiser regulatory program (Program) on March 1-3, 2016, to determine the 
Program’s compliance with Title XI of the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery, and 
Enforcement Act of 1989, as amended.   
 
 The ASC considered the preliminary results of the Review and the State’s response to those 
results.  The Program has been awarded an ASC Finding of “Good.”  The final ASC Compliance 
Review Report (Report) is attached. 
 
 The ASC identified the following area of non-compliance:   
  States must, at a minimum, adopt and/or implement all relevant AQB Criteria.1 
 
 ASC staff will confirm that appropriate corrective actions have been taken during the next 
Review. Arkansas will remain on a two-year Review Cycle. 


 
 This letter and the attached Report are public records and available on the ASC website.  
Please contact us if you have any questions about this Report. 
 
   Sincerely, 
 
 
 
     James R. Park 
     Executive Director 
 
 
Attachment 
cc: Mr. Pete Prutzman, Chair   
                                                 
1 12 U.S.C. § 3345; 12 U.S.C. § 3347; Policy Statement 1 C, D. 







ASC Finding Descriptions 


 


ASC  
Finding 


Rating Criteria Review Cycle*  


Excellent 
 State meets all Title XI mandates and complies with requirements 


of ASC Policy Statements 
 State maintains a strong regulatory Program 
 Very low risk of Program failure 


2-year 


Good 


 State meets the majority of Title XI mandates and complies with 
the majority of ASC Policy Statement requirements 


 Deficiencies are minor in nature 
 State is adequately addressing deficiencies identified and 


correcting them in the normal course of business 
 State maintains an effective regulatory Program 
 Low risk of Program failure 


2-year 


Needs 
Improvement 


 State does not meet all Title XI mandates and does not comply 
with all requirements of ASC Policy Statements  


 Deficiencies are material but manageable and if not corrected in a 
timely manner pose a potential risk to the Program 


 State may have a history of repeated deficiencies but is showing 
progress toward correcting deficiencies 


 State regulatory Program needs improvement 
 Moderate risk of Program failure 


2-year with 
additional monitoring 


Not Satisfactory 


 State does not meet all Title XI mandates and does not comply 
with all requirements of ASC Policy Statements 


 Deficiencies present a significant risk and if not corrected in a 
timely manner pose a well-defined risk to the Program  


 State may have a history of repeated deficiencies and requires 
more supervision to ensure corrective actions are progressing 


 State regulatory Program has substantial deficiencies 
 Substantial risk of Program failure 


1-year 


Poor2 


 State does not meet Title XI mandates and does not comply with 
requirements of ASC Policy Statements 


 Deficiencies are significant and severe, require immediate 
attention and if not corrected represent critical flaws in the 
Program 


 State may have a history of repeated deficiencies and may show a 
lack of willingness or ability to correct deficiencies   


 High risk of Program failure 


Continuous 
monitoring 


*Program history or nature of deficiency may warrant a more accelerated Review Cycle.  
 
       
 
  
                                                 
2 An ASC Finding of “Poor” may result in significant consequences to the State.  See Policy Statement 5, Reciprocity; see also 
Policy Statement 8, Interim Sanctions.  







ASC Finding:  Good
Final Report Issue Date: May 26, 2016


PM:  C. Brooks Review Period:  March 2014 - March 2016
Review Cycle:  Two Year


Applicable Federal Citations ASC Staff Observations State Response Required/Recommended State Actions General Comments


YES NO AC
Statutes, Regulations, Policies 
and Procedures: X
States must, at a minimum, 
adopt and/or implement all 
relevant AQB Criteria.  (12 
U.S.C. § 3345; 12 U.S.C. § 3347; 
Policy Statement 1 C, D.)


A review of the State's Regulations revealed the following 
inconsistencies with the AQB Criteria regarding:  (1) 
reactivation of an appraiser credential; and (2) Trainee 
requirements.
Prior to reactivation, a  credential holder in an inactive 
status must complete all required continuing education 
(CE) hours that would have been required if the credential 
holder had been in active status, including the most 
recent 7-hour National USPAP course.  Regulation IX E. 
only requires any appraiser who has been inactive for 
more than 3 years must show evidence of having taken 
the most recent 7-hour National USPAP update course 
during the preceding year in addition to other CE 
requirements. 
AQB Criteria requires appraiser trainees to be subject to 
direct supervision by a supervisory appraiser who shall be 
State certified.  Regulation XI specifies that a Trainee is 
not required to be supervised for assignments which are 
not federally-related transactions.


On May 4, 2016, the State reported that 
the rules for reactivation and Trainee 
supervision will be revised to be 
consistent with AQB Criteria.


The State must amend its regulation to bring it 
into compliance with AQB Criteria.  A copy of the 
regulation should be provided to ASC staff once 
adopted.


During the next Compliance Review, ASC staff will pay 
particular attention to this area for compliance with Title XI 
and ASC Policy Statement 1.


Temporary Practice: X
No compliance issues noted. N/A None None


National Registry: X
No compliance issues noted. N/A None None


Application Process: X
No compliance issues noted. N/A None None


Reciprocity: X
No compliance issues noted. N/A None None


Education: X
No compliance issues noted. N/A None None


Enforcement: X
No compliance issues noted. N/A None None


ASC Compliance Review Report


Umbrella Agency:  Independent
Compliance (YES/NO) 
Areas of Concern (AC)  


ASC Compliance Review Date:  March 1-3, 2016
Number of State Credentialed Appraisers on National Registry:  810


Arkansas Appraiser Regulatory Program (State)
Arkansas Appraiser Licensing and Certification Board 
(Board) / Decision Making


Page 1 of 1








 
Appraisal Subcommittee 


Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council 


1401 H Street, NW Suite 760 Washington, DC 20005 (202) 289-2735  Fax (202) 289-4101  
 
 


      May 31, 2016 
 
Mr. Bruce Unangst, Executive Director  
Louisiana Real Estate Appraisers Board 
P O Box 14785 
Baton Rouge, LA  70898-4785 
 
RE:  ASC Compliance Review of Louisiana’s Appraiser Regulatory Program 
 
Dear Mr. Unangst: 
 
 The Appraisal Subcommittee (ASC) staff conducted an ASC Compliance Review (Review) 
of the Louisiana appraiser regulatory program (Program) on February 2-4, 2016, to determine the 
Program’s compliance with Title XI of the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery, and 
Enforcement Act of 1989, as amended.   
 
 The ASC considered the preliminary results of the Review and the State’s response to those 
results.  The Program has been awarded an ASC Finding of “Good.”  The final ASC Compliance 
Review Report (Report) is attached. 
 
 The ASC identified the following area of non-compliance:   
  States must verify that the applicant has successfully completed courses consistent with 


AQB Criteria for the appraiser credential sought, whether for initial credentialing, 
renewal, upgrade or reinstatement.1 


 
 ASC staff will confirm that appropriate corrective actions have been taken during the next 
Review. Louisiana will remain on a two-year Review Cycle. 
 
     This letter and the attached Report are public records and available on the ASC website.  
Please contact us if you have any questions about this Report. 
 
   Sincerely, 
 
 
 
     James R. Park 
     Executive Director 
 
Attachment 
cc:  Ms. Summer Mire, Confidential Assistant;  
  Ms. Anne Brassett, Program Administrator   
                                                 
1 12 U.S.C. § 3347; Policy Statement 4. 







ASC Finding Descriptions 


 


ASC  
Finding 


Rating Criteria Review Cycle*  


Excellent 
 State meets all Title XI mandates and complies with requirements 


of ASC Policy Statements 
 State maintains a strong regulatory Program 
 Very low risk of Program failure 


2-year 


Good 


 State meets the majority of Title XI mandates and complies with 
the majority of ASC Policy Statement requirements 


 Deficiencies are minor in nature 
 State is adequately addressing deficiencies identified and 


correcting them in the normal course of business 
 State maintains an effective regulatory Program 
 Low risk of Program failure 


2-year 


Needs 
Improvement 


 State does not meet all Title XI mandates and does not comply 
with all requirements of ASC Policy Statements  


 Deficiencies are material but manageable and if not corrected in a 
timely manner pose a potential risk to the Program 


 State may have a history of repeated deficiencies but is showing 
progress toward correcting deficiencies 


 State regulatory Program needs improvement 
 Moderate risk of Program failure 


2-year with 
additional monitoring 


Not Satisfactory 


 State does not meet all Title XI mandates and does not comply 
with all requirements of ASC Policy Statements 


 Deficiencies present a significant risk and if not corrected in a 
timely manner pose a well-defined risk to the Program  


 State may have a history of repeated deficiencies and requires 
more supervision to ensure corrective actions are progressing 


 State regulatory Program has substantial deficiencies 
 Substantial risk of Program failure 


1-year 


Poor2 


 State does not meet Title XI mandates and does not comply with 
requirements of ASC Policy Statements 


 Deficiencies are significant and severe, require immediate 
attention and if not corrected represent critical flaws in the 
Program 


 State may have a history of repeated deficiencies and may show a 
lack of willingness or ability to correct deficiencies   


 High risk of Program failure 


Continuous 
monitoring 


*Program history or nature of deficiency may warrant a more accelerated Review Cycle.  
 
 
 
  
                                                 
2 An ASC Finding of “Poor” may result in significant consequences to the State.  See Policy Statement 5, Reciprocity; see also 
Policy Statement 8, Interim Sanctions.  







ASC Finding:  Good
Final Report Issue Date:  May 31, 2016


PM:  N. Fenochietti Review Period:  February 2014 to February 2016 


Review Cycle:   Two Year


Applicable Federal Citations ASC Staff Observations State Response Required/Recommended State Actions  General Comments


YES NO AC
Statutes, Regulations, Policies 
and Procedures: X
States must, at a minimum, 
adopt and/or implement all 
relevant AQB Criteria.  (12 
U.S.C. § 3345; 12 U.S.C. § 3347; 
Policy Statement 1 C, D.)


Supervisory Appraisers are required to be 
state‐certified and in “good standing” in the 
jurisdiction in which the Trainee Appraiser 
practices for a period of at least three (3) 
years.  The Supervisory Appraiser 
requirements set forth in Louisiana Revised 
Statute 37:3397 does not require the 
Supervisory Appraiser to be in “good 
standing” in the jurisdiction in which the 
Trainee Appraiser practices.


On May 12, 2016, the State reported that 
subsequent to the Compliance Review, 
legislation amending the statute to bring 
it into compliance with AQB Criteria was 
approved and has been delivered to the 
Governor for signature.


To strengthen the Program, the State should 
continue the process of amending its statute 
consistent with AQB Criteria.


During the next Compliance Review, ASC staff will pay 
particular attention to this area for compliance with AQB 
Crieria.


Statutes, Regulations, Policies 
and Procedures continued: X
States must, at a minimum, 
adopt and/or implement all 
relevant AQB Criteria.  (12 
U.S.C. § 3345; 12 U.S.C. § 3347; 
Policy Statement 1 C, D.)


Experience must comply with USPAP and may 
be gained under more than one version of 
USPAP.  Louisiana Rules 46:10308.C.1. 
requires appraiser trainees' work product be 
supervised in accordance with the guidelines 
and requirements of the 2014‐2015 USPAP.  
L.R. 46:10309.C. requires that only 2014‐2015 
compliant appraisals will be accepted by the 
board for experience credit. 


On May12, 2016, the State reported that 
they sent the final Rules for promulgation 
and they should become effective June 
20, 2016.


To strengthen the Program, the State should 
continue the process of amending its Rules 
consistent with AQB Criteria.


During the next Compliance Review, ASC staff will pay 
particular attention to this area for compliance with AQB 
Crieria.


Temporary Practice: X
No compliance issues noted. N/A None None


National Registry: X
No compliance issues noted. N/A None None


Application Process: X
States must verify that the 
applicant has successfully 
completed courses consistent 
with AQB Criteria for the 
appraiser credential sought, 
whether for initial credentialing, 
renewal, upgrade or 
reinstatement.  (12 U.S.C. § 
3347; Policy Statement 4.)


An appraiser credential was reactivated 
without completion of the requisite number 
of continuing education (CE) hours.


On May 12, 2016, the State reported that  
the credential holder has registered and 
paid for the additional courses required 
for reactivation.  The courses are 
scheduled for completion on July 1, 2016.


The State must ensure that the applicant 
Completes the additional CE hours required for 
reactivation. 


During the next Compliance Review, ASC staff will pay 
particular attention to this area for compliance with Title 
XI and ASC Policy Statement 4.


ASC Compliance Review Report


Umbrella Agency:  Real Estate Commission


Compliance (YES/NO) 
Areas of Concern (AC)  


ASC Compliance Review Date:  February 02‐04, 2016


Number of State Credentialed Appraisers on National Registry:  1,336


Louisiana Appraiser Regulatory Program (State)
Louisiana Real Estate Appraisers Board (Board) / 
Decision Making


Page 1 of 2







ASC Finding:  Good
Final Report Issue Date:  May 31, 2016


PM:  N. Fenochietti Review Period:  February 2014 to February 2016 


Review Cycle:   Two Year


Applicable Federal Citations ASC Staff Observations State Response Required/Recommended State Actions  General Comments


YES NO AC


ASC Compliance Review Report


Umbrella Agency:  Real Estate Commission


Compliance (YES/NO) 
Areas of Concern (AC)  


ASC Compliance Review Date:  February 02‐04, 2016


Number of State Credentialed Appraisers on National Registry:  1,336


Louisiana Appraiser Regulatory Program (State)
Louisiana Real Estate Appraisers Board (Board) / 
Decision Making


Reciprocity: X
No compliance issues noted. N/A None None


Education: X
No compliance issues noted. N/A None None


Enforcement: X
No compliance issues noted. N/A None None


Page 2 of 2








State Program Summary Report


State or Territory
Review Year


Review Month


ASC Finding


Review Cycle Assigned (in years)


Required State Actions or Off Site Monitoring 


Follow‐Up ( in months)


Out of Compliance (OC)
Area of Concern (AC)  OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC 


Statutes, Regulations, Policies and Procedures: 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 2
Temporary Practice: 1
National Registry: 1
Application Process: 1 1 1
Reciprocity: 1 1 1
Education: 1 1
Enforcement 1 1 2 2 1
TOTAL OUT OF COMPLIANCE
TOTAL AREA OF CONCERN


Last Review Finding
Previous Review Finding
FTE
Independent or Under Umbrella (I/UU)


Board Type
# Credentials on National Registry
# Trainees
Complaints Received in Review Cycle
Complaints Outstanding
Complaints Outstanding Over 1 Year
Special Documented Circumstances
AMC Laws and Regulations 


Good (2014)Good (2014)
NISC (2012)


AL AK AZ AR CA CO HICT DE DC FL GA GU
2015 2016 2015 20152016 2015 2016 2016 2014 2014 2014 2015 2015


Jan Jul Jun Mar Oct Sep Dec


Good Good Excel Good Good Excel Good Good Good


Jul Jan Mar Feb Mar Nov


2 2 2 2 2 2


Good Excel Good Good


22 2 2 2 2 2


                    1                        1                       ‐                         ‐                         ‐                        2                        ‐                               1                          ‐                           1                        2                    ‐                        2 
                      2                                ‐                           ‐                            ‐                         3                     ‐                       4                        4                       2                         2                          ‐                         4                          ‐ 


Not Sat (2014) Exel (2014)
NISC (2012)


NISC (2012) ISC (2012) Good (2013)ISC (2012) NISC (2013) NISC (2013) ISC (2013)
Needs Imp 


(2014)
Needs Imp 


(2013)
ISC (2011) NISC (2011) ISC (2012) ISC (2007) NISC (2011)NISC (2013) NISC (2012) NISC (2010) ISC (2010) ISC (2010) ISC (2011)


1.45 0.55 0.9 9.5 5.4 0.146.3 0.57 3.6 2.9 32.9 9 0.95
I UU UU I UU UU UU UU UU UU I UU UU


AdvisoryDecision Decision Decision Decision Decision NoneDecision Decision None Decision None Decision
704 6,832 3,445 21 5201,310 246 2,045 815 11,101 2,676 1,294 599


113 18 75 142 773 n/a
11 482 178 0 2157 11 206 68 661 273 100 21


24 2 20 7 134 44 25 5 4 103 51 0


n/a91 41 40 615 20 3


N/A


3
4 0 0 0 17 0 1 2
0 0 0 1 5 11 0 0 1 3 4 0


0 0 0 0 0


No Yes Yes No NoYes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes


Legend:  NISC = Not in Substanial Compliance; ISC = In Substantial Compliance; NIC = Not in Compliance; Excel = Excellent; Needs Imp = Needs Improvement; Not Sat = Not Satisfactory







State Program Summary Report


State or Territory
Review Year


Review Month


ASC Finding


Review Cycle Assigned (in years)


Required State Actions or Off Site Monitoring 


Follow‐Up ( in months)


Out of Compliance (OC)
Area of Concern (AC)


Statutes, Regulations, Policies and Procedures:
Temporary Practice:
National Registry:
Application Process:
Reciprocity:
Education:
Enforcement
TOTAL OUT OF COMPLIANCE
TOTAL AREA OF CONCERN


Last Review Finding
Previous Review Finding
FTE
Independent or Under Umbrella (I/UU)


Board Type
# Credentials on National Registry
# Trainees
Complaints Received in Review Cycle
Complaints Outstanding
Complaints Outstanding Over 1 Year
Special Documented Circumstances
AMC Laws and Regulations 


 OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC 


1 2 2 1 1 1
1


2 3
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1


1
1


1 1 1 1 1


2015 2015 2015 2015 2016 2015 2014 2014 2014


KY LA ME CNMI MD MAID IL IN IA KS
2015


MI MN
2015 2015


Mar Feb Jun Nov Apr


2014


Apr Sep Feb


Needs Imp Good Needs Imp Good GoodNeeds Imp Excel Excel Excel Good Good


JunJul Oct Sep Jul


Good Needs Imp


2 2 2 22 2 2 2 2 2 2


YesYes Yes Yes


                     2                       ‐                       ‐                      1                           ‐                      2                        1                        2                           ‐                              2                        2                         ‐                        ‐ 
                     2                         2                         1                        2                       1                        3                          ‐                         ‐                         ‐                       2                          1                           1                              2 


ISC (2013) Good (2014) Excel (2013)
ISC (2007)


NISC (2012) NISC (2012)NISC (2013)
NIC (2011)


ISC (2013) Excel (2013) Excel (2013)
NISC (2011) ISC (2011) NISC (2012)NISC (2011)


Needs Imp 
(2013)


Needs Imp 
(2013) NISC (2012) NISC (2012)


NISC (2011) ISC (2011)
5.450.1 2.8 1.8 0.85 2 3.45


ISC (2011) NISC (2010) NISC (2010) NISC (2010) ISC (2010)
4.37 2.63.3 1.5 0.3 3.5


UU UU UUUU UU UU UU UU UU UU


Decision Advisory Decision Decision Decision


I Indep. UU


Decision Decision Decision
Decision ‐ 


Enf NoneDecision Decision Decision
993 1,397 1,337699


46


563 9 2,364 2,084 2,671 2,0934,046 2,155 1,095


31 105 33
203 159 29 0 252 322


70 0 168 309 442396
71 66


429 127 57
369 312


23 4 17 0 33


35 548 127 115 11


2 70


7713


2 5
0 02 5 29 9 534 7 0 0 0 0


119 66 7 7


Yes Yes No Yes Yes YesNo No No Yes No Yes Yes
2 0 0 01 0 0 1


Legend:  NISC = Not in Substanial Compliance; ISC = In Substantial Compliance; NIC = Not in Compliance; Excel = Excellent; Needs Imp = Needs Improvement; Not Sat = Not Satisfactory







State Program Summary Report


State or Territory
Review Year


Review Month


ASC Finding


Review Cycle Assigned (in years)


Required State Actions or Off Site Monitoring 


Follow‐Up ( in months)


Out of Compliance (OC)
Area of Concern (AC)


Statutes, Regulations, Policies and Procedures:
Temporary Practice:
National Registry:
Application Process:
Reciprocity:
Education:
Enforcement
TOTAL OUT OF COMPLIANCE
TOTAL AREA OF CONCERN


Last Review Finding
Previous Review Finding
FTE
Independent or Under Umbrella (I/UU)


Board Type
# Credentials on National Registry
# Trainees
Complaints Received in Review Cycle
Complaints Outstanding
Complaints Outstanding Over 1 Year
Special Documented Circumstances
AMC Laws and Regulations 


 OC   AC   OC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC 


4 1 3 1 1 1 1 1 2
1


1
1 2 1 2


1 1 1
1


1 1 1 1


2014


Yes


20152014 2015 2015 2014


ND OHNV NH NJ NM NY NCMS MO MT NE
2015 2015 2014 2014


May May Sep Apr


20152015


Jun Aug


ExcelGood Good Good Good Excel Needs ImpNeeds Imp


Aug NovJun Jun Sep Mar


Good Needs Imp Excel Good


2 22 2 2 2 2 22 2 2 2


YesYesYes


                     1                    ‐                       1                            ‐                          ‐                         ‐                    2                       ‐                       1                         ‐                       4                     1 
                        ‐                        2                       4                      ‐                        3                     ‐                     2                        ‐                           1                          1                         4                         4 


NISC (2012) Good (2013) NISC (2012)Good (2013)
NISC (2012)


Needs Imp 
(2013) ISC (2012)ISC (2013) NISC (2012)


Needs Imp 
(2013) Good (2013)


NISC (2010) NISC (2009) NISC (2011) ISC (2010) ISC (2010) ISC (2011)
ISC (2012) Good (2013)


ISC (2011) NISC (2010) ISC (2011) NISC (2010) ISC (2011)
2.4 6.5 3.95 5.5 103.33 2.2 2.7 1.6 2 8.852.9


UU UU UU I  I  UUUU UU UU I  UU UU


DecisionDecision Decision Decision Decision
Reg. 


Decision DecisionDecision Decision Decision Decision Decision
2,772 618 4,063 3,127 290 3,0611,111 2,375 371 657 1,043 782


48 31855 404
17


281 24 54
41 127 27273 124 119 31 81 22 146 253


8 30 37 1


17 128 84 45153


22 9


2


9 69
13


0 6 3 22


55


0 8
3 0 2 0 7 0 1


5041 15
0 2 2


9 7 5
No Yes No


0
Yes NoYes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes


Legend:  NISC = Not in Substanial Compliance; ISC = In Substantial Compliance; NIC = Not in Compliance; Excel = Excellent; Needs Imp = Needs Improvement; Not Sat = Not Satisfactory







State Program Summary Report


State or Territory
Review Year


Review Month


ASC Finding


Review Cycle Assigned (in years)


Required State Actions or Off Site Monitoring 


Follow‐Up ( in months)


Out of Compliance (OC)
Area of Concern (AC)


Statutes, Regulations, Policies and Procedures:
Temporary Practice:
National Registry:
Application Process:
Reciprocity:
Education:
Enforcement
TOTAL OUT OF COMPLIANCE
TOTAL AREA OF CONCERN


Last Review Finding
Previous Review Finding
FTE
Independent or Under Umbrella (I/UU)


Board Type
# Credentials on National Registry
# Trainees
Complaints Received in Review Cycle
Complaints Outstanding
Complaints Outstanding Over 1 Year
Special Documented Circumstances
AMC Laws and Regulations 


 OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC 


1 1 1 1 1 3 1
1


1 2
1 1 1 3


1 1 1


1 1 1 1 1


Good(2013)


TX UTOK OR PA PR VT VIRI SC SD TN
2015 2014 2015 2016 2015 2014 20142014 2014 2015 2015


May Dec


2015


Aug NovOct May Aug Jan Feb MayOct Jul


Good Excel Excel Good Good Needs ImpGood Needs Imp Good Needs Imp Needs Imp Good


2 22 2 2 2 2 22 2 2 2


Yes YesYes Yes


12


                      ‐                         5                      1                      4                     1                     ‐                          ‐                        ‐                     1                     1                        1                        ‐ 
                    ‐                          ‐                        1                        1                          4                    1                         2                        2                         ‐                       1                      1                      ‐ 


Excel (2013) ISC (2012) NISC (2012)
ISC (2012)NISC (2010)


NISC (2012) NISC (2012)
ISC (2011)


ISC (2013) ISC (2012) ISC (2013) Good (2014) NISC (2013)
ISC (2010) ISC (2011) NISC (2012) NISC (2011) NISC (2010) NISC (2010)ISC (2011) ISC (2010) ISC (2011)


0.26 11.05 2.8 2.2 4.75 11.9 4.953.75 4.1 2 0.2
UU UU UU UU UU UUI ‐ adjunct  I  UU UU UU UU


Decision Decision Decision Decision Decision DecisionDecision Decision Advisory Decision Decision Decision
346 1,886 5,246 1,246 292 23990 1,494 3,311 382 462 2,129


85
26 109


83 80 432 n/a 20 n/a29 132 67 225 787
484 134 20 2108 137 410 9 6 99


0 1 9 0


0 21 9 22 155 5239 45 102 3


6 16


10 3


1 10 0 2 1


Good (2013)


Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes NoYes Yes Yes No No No


1 1 0 6 1 10 10 35 0 0 7


Legend:  NISC = Not in Substanial Compliance; ISC = In Substantial Compliance; NIC = Not in Compliance; Excel = Excellent; Needs Imp = Needs Improvement; Not Sat = Not Satisfactory







State Program Summary Report


State or Territory
Review Year


Review Month


ASC Finding


Review Cycle Assigned (in years)


Required State Actions or Off Site Monitoring 


Follow‐Up ( in months)


Out of Compliance (OC)
Area of Concern (AC)


Statutes, Regulations, Policies and Procedures:
Temporary Practice:
National Registry:
Application Process:
Reciprocity:
Education:
Enforcement
TOTAL OUT OF COMPLIANCE
TOTAL AREA OF CONCERN


Last Review Finding
Previous Review Finding
FTE
Independent or Under Umbrella (I/UU)


Board Type
# Credentials on National Registry
# Trainees
Complaints Received in Review Cycle
Complaints Outstanding
Complaints Outstanding Over 1 Year
Special Documented Circumstances
AMC Laws and Regulations 


# Excel 12
# Good 30


# Needs Imp 13
# Not Sat 0


# Poor 0


 OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC   OC   AC  OC TOTAL
AC 


TOTAL


2 1 1 23 27
2 2
0 10


1 1 1 1 14 13
0 10
1 3


1 1 2 1 12 14
52


79


WYVA WA WV WI
2014 2014 2015 20152015


SepAug Aug Dec Jun


Excel Needs Imp Good GoodNeeds Imp


22 2 2 2


YesYes


6


                     1                       2                          ‐                       2                       1 
                        ‐                        2                        1                        2                       2 


Good (2013)ISC (2013) NISC (2012) NISC (2012)
Needs Imp 


(2013)
ISC (2011) NISC (2010) ISC (2010) NISC (2011) NISC (2011)


1.421.75 6.33 2.55 3.35
UU UU I UU UU


DecisionDecision Advisory Decision Decision
3,387 2,723 571 2,162 337


2371 243 36 n/a
190 226 36 134 8


58 11 91 4
8 2 51 0


41
2


00 5 2 0
Yes Yes Yes No Yes


Legend:  NISC = Not in Substanial Compliance; ISC = In Substantial Compliance; NIC = Not in Compliance; Excel = Excellent; Needs Imp = Needs Improvement; Not Sat = Not Satisfactory








 


Page 1 of 4 


 APPRAISAL SUBCOMMITTEE 


OPEN SESSION MEETING MINUTES 


MARCH 9, 2016 


LOCATION:  Federal Reserve Board – International Square location 


                       1850 K Street NW, Washington, DC 20006  


ATTENDEES  


ASC MEMBERS: FRB – Art Lindo (Chair)  


    CFPB – Mira Marshall 


    FDIC – Rae-Ann Miller 


    FHFA – Robert Witt 


    HUD – Ada Bohorfoush 


    NCUA – Tim Segerson  


    OCC – Richard Taft 
               


ASC STAFF:  Executive Director – Jim Park 


    General Counsel – Alice Ritter 


    Financial Manager – Girard Hull 


    Attorney-Advisor – Dan Rhoads 


    Policy Manager – Claire Brooks 


    Policy Manager – Neal Fenochietti 


    Policy Manager – Kristi Klamet 


    Policy Manager – Vicki Metcalf 


    Policy Manager – Jenny Tidwell 


    Management & Program Analyst – Lori Schuster 


    Administrative Officer – Brian Kelly  


    Administrative Assistant – Maria Cahn 
     


OBSERVERS: AARO – Larry Disney 


    Appraisal Foundation – Dave Bunton 


    Appraisal Foundation – Cathy Johnson 


    Appraisal Institute – Brian Rodgers 


    FDIC – Richard Foley 


    FDIC – Suzy Gardner 


    FDIC – Marianne Hatheway 


    FDIC – Kim Stock 


    Forsythe Appraisals - Alan Hummel  


    FRB – Carmen Holly 


    FRB - Matt Suntag 


    HUD – Robert Frazier 


    Kelly Group – Don Kelly 


    NAR – Sehar Siddiqi 







 


Page 2 of 4 


    OCC – Chris Manthey 


    OCC- Kevin Lawton 


    OCC – Joanne Williams 


    Pro Teck Valuation Services – Jeff Dickstein 


    Stewart Valuation Services – Frank O’Neill      


               


The Meeting was called to order at 10:10 a.m. by A. Lindo.   


 REPORTS 


 Chairman 


A. Lindo welcomed observers to the Meeting.  He noted that the ASC is on track to meet its 


goals as stated in the FY16 Operating Plan.                


 Executive Director 


J. Park reported on ASC staff activities since the ASC’s November 4th Meeting.  He and D. 


Graves attended the Appraisal Standards Board (ASB) Meeting on November 19-20 in 


Cincinnati, OH and the Appraisal Foundation Board of Trustees Meeting in Tampa, FL on 


January 9th.  J. Park also attended the Appraisal Practices Board Meeting in Las Vegas, NV on 


January 29th and the ASB Meeting in Tampa, FL on February 18-19th. 


ASC staff met with representatives from the American Bankers Association, the American 


Society of Farm Managers and Rural Appraisers, and the Appraisal Foundation to discuss the 


potential shortage of appraisers.  Future meetings will be held to review appraiser 


demographics.  The Appraiser Qualifications Board (AQB) will prepare a study on appraiser 


demographics with assistance from ASC staff.  M. Marshall commented that if Home Mortgage 


Disclosure Act (HMDA) data is being reviewed to determine demographics, there may be 


incomplete data due to exemptions in reporting.  J. Park acknowledged that HMDA data is 


being considered for the study.  


The Unique Identifier program is being tested by several States and appears to be working well.  


Development of the appraisal management company (AMC) National Registry also continues 


and may be operational by early 2017, but this will depend in part on the final rulemaking for 


the AMC Registry fees. 


 Financial Manager 


G. Hull reported that the ASC’s FY15 audit has been completed.  The ASC received a clean 


opinion with no findings, weaknesses (material or immaterial), compliance issues or internal 


control deficiencies.  He noted that in FY15, 88.3% of the operating budget was expended.  


Actual revenue for FY15 was less than one percent under the estimated revenue.  FY15 net 


reserves did decline from FY14 levels which is due to a decline in the total credentials on the 


National Registry.  The cumulative net reserve balance at the end of FY15 was approximately 


$4.7 million.  He also said that the amount of funds sequestered in FY15 was $256,712 which 







 


Page 3 of 4 


was 7.3% of available cash receipts.  For FY16, the sequestration percentage is 6.8% of 


available cash receipts. 


Regarding the Appraisal Foundation FY16 grant which was $350,000 for grant-eligible 


activities, the Foundation has submitted a request to reallocate certain AQB travel expenses 


associated with the National Uniform Licensing and Certification Exam.  Originally three 


meetings had been included, but the consultant indicated that one meeting could be conducted 


via webinar.  Therefore, the Foundation is proposing two meetings instead of three.  ASC staff 


determined that the expense items associated with this request are grant eligible and additional 


funding is not required.  ASC staff intends to approve this request with no action required by 


the ASC Board.            


 Delegated State Compliance Reviews          


D. Rhoads reported on State Compliance Reviews completed pursuant to delegated authority 


since the ASC’s November 4th Meeting.  Six State Compliance Reviews were finalized and 


approved by the Executive Director under delegated authority.  Kansas was awarded a Finding 


of “Excellent” and will remain on a two-year Review Cycle.  Hawaii, Montana, Oklahoma, 


Puerto Rico and Wyoming were awarded a finding of “Good” and each State will remain on a 


two-year Review Cycle. 


Four State Compliance Reviews were finalized and approved by the Chairman under delegated 


authority.  Illinois, New York, Rhode Island and Virginia were awarded a Finding of “Needs 


Improvement.”  Illinois, New York and Rhode Island will remain on a two-year Review Cycle.  


Virginia will remain on a two-year Review Cycle with a Follow-up Review.    


 ACTION ITEMS 


 November 4, 2015 Open Session Minutes  


A. Bohorfoush made a motion to approve the November 4th open session meeting minutes as 


presented.  R. Witt seconded and all members present voted to approve.   


 Appraisal Foundation Grant  


G. Hull reported that the Appraisal Foundation submitted a reimbursement request in the 


amount of $21,734 to reprogram funds to other 2015 grant-eligible AQB expenses.  The AQB 


and ASB had $11,576 and $10,158 in unused FY15 grant funds, respectively.  These funds 


would be used to cover AQB psychometric consultant costs for the National Uniform Licensing 


and Certification Exams.  ASC staff has reviewed the request and recommends approval in the 


amount requested.  R. Taft moved to approve the reprogramming request in the amount of 


$21,734.  A. Bohorfoush seconded and all members present voted to approve.     


  







 


Page 4 of 4 


 Notice of Proposed Rulemaking (NPRM) on AMC Registry Fees 


A. Ritter reported that legal staff from the ASC member agencies reviewed the draft NPRM and 


provided comments.  The NPRM proposes that States that elect to register and supervise AMCs 


would be required to collect and transmit annual AMC registry fees to the ASC.  The rule 


would establish the annual AMC registry fee for States that elect to register and supervise 


AMCs as follows:  (1) in the case of an AMC that has been in existence for more than a year, 


$25 multiplied by the number of appraisers who have performed an appraisal assignment for the 


AMC on a covered transaction in such State during the previous year; and (2) in the case of an 


AMC that has not been in existence for more than a year, $25 multiplied by the number of 


appraisers who have performed an appraisal assignment for the AMC on a covered transaction 


in such State since the AMC commenced doing business.  The rule would require AMC registry 


fees to be collected and transmitted to the ASC on an annual basis by States that elect to register 


and supervise AMCs.  Only those AMCs whose registry fees have been transmitted to the ASC 


would be eligible to be on the AMC Registry for the 12-month period following the payment of 


the fee.  A. Ritter added that ASC staff would like to publish the NPRM in the Federal Register 


in early April.  R. Witt asked if  “completed assignment” will be defined; A. Lindo suggested 


including it as a definition and to also request input from commenters.  R. Taft asked if 


Federally-regulated AMCs in non-participating States would be included on the AMC Registry.  


A. Ritter responded that a proposed footnote would be an invitation for those AMCs to report 


directly to the ASC in that limited circumstance.  R. Taft suggested to either keep the footnote 


or pose it as a question in the NPRM.  A. Lindo said the ASC could ask the question in the 


NPRM but should also include a suggestion as to how the fee would be collected.  A. Ritter 


agreed that the ASC does not have the authority to make this part of the rulemaking, but 


suggested it be addressed in the preamble as an option.  A. Lindo noted that ASC members 


agree on the core elements of the NPRM but that some member agencies are still reviewing it.  


He said that the preamble text needs to be revised based on today’s discussion and would like a 


timeline for the NPRM approval in order to get it published in the Federal Register.  He would 


like this completed before the ASC’s May 11th Meeting and suggested a notation vote be 


considered.  A. Ritter said she would make the revisions as discussed at today’s Meeting and 


would send it to the ASC members and their legal staff for comment by March 11th.  A. Lindo 


suggested two weeks for review with a notation vote by early April.  A. Bohorfoush asked if it 


was acceptable to handle this by notation vote.  A. Ritter responded that she is comfortable with 


a notation vote.  She added that if substantive changes are made to the NPRM, a vote in an 


Open Meeting may be necessary.  A. Lindo offered observers a chance to ask questions 


regarding the NPRM.  D. Kelly asked if  “covered transaction” would be defined in the NPRM.  


A. Ritter responded that this would be consistent with the definition in the agencies’ AMC Final 


Rule.  J. Dickstein asked if the 12-month period would be outlined in the NPRM or will it be 


left to the States to define.  A. Ritter said the States would have the flexibility to align a one-


year period with any 12-month period, which may or may not be based on the calendar year.   


The Open Session adjourned at 11:15 a.m.  The next ASC Meeting will be May 11, 2016.     








 


Page 1 of 2 


 APPRAISAL SUBCOMMITTEE 


CLOSED SESSION MEETING MINUTES 


MARCH 9, 2016 


LOCATION:  Federal Reserve Board – International Square location 


                       1850 K Street NW, Washington, DC 20006  


ATTENDEES  


ASC MEMBERS: FRB – Art Lindo (Chair)  


    CFPB – Mira Marshall 


    FDIC – Rae-Ann Miller 


    FHFA – Robert Witt 


    HUD – Ada Bohorfoush 


    NCUA – Tim Segerson  


    OCC – Richard Taft 
               


ASC STAFF:  Executive Director – Jim Park  


    General Counsel – Alice Ritter 


    Financial Manager – Girard Hull 


    Attorney-Advisor – Dan Rhoads 


    Policy Manager – Claire Brooks 


    Policy Manager – Neal Fenochietti 


    Policy Manager – Kristi Klamet 


    Policy Manager – Vicki Metcalf 


    Policy Manager – Jenny Tidwell 


    Management & Program Analyst – Lori Schuster 


    Administrative Officer – Brian Kelly  


    Administrative Assistant – Maria Cahn 
     


OBSERVERS: FDIC – Richard Foley 


    FDIC – Suzy Gardner 


    FDIC – Marianne Hatheway 


    FDIC – Kim Stock 


    FRB – Carmen Holly 


    FRB – Matt Suntatg 


    OCC – Kevin Lawton 


    OCC – Chris Manthey 


    OCC- Joanne Williams       
                


The Meeting was called to order at 11:30 a.m. by A. Lindo.      


  


  







 


Page 2 of 2 


 ASC Chairman Term 


A. Lindo noted that his ASC Chairman term expires on March 31st.  He said he is amenable 


to serving another two-year term.  A. Lindo said if other members are interested in the 


position, to please let the FFIEC know by March 14th.  The FFIEC will meet on March 29th 


and will make the appointment at that meeting.   


 State Preliminary Investigation 


A. Ritter said the ASC received a complaint from an attorney in Georgia against the 


Georgia appraiser regulatory agency (GREAB) and the company in Georgia that 


administers approved qualifying exams, AMP.  The basis for the complaint is that the 


complainant, a licensed appraiser seeking to upgrade to a certified credential, did not meet 


the January 1, 2015 deadline to sit for the exam.  As a result, he is now subject to the new 


Appraiser Qualifications Board (AQB) Criteria (AQB Criteria), which requires a college 


degree for a certified credential.  The complaint includes a request that the ASC open a 


formal investigation pursuant to § 1102.38, ASC Rules of Practice for Proceedings.  The 


complaint also seeks an order from the ASC requiring GREAB to grant a one-time 


exception to retroactively apply the 2014 Criteria for the complainant.  


The AQB set a firm deadline of January 1, 2015, for the AQB Criteria  to go into effect.  


The only exception for implementing the AQB Criteria was for applicants in the Reserve 


components called to active duty.     


ASC staff conducted a preliminary investigation into the action taken by GREAB.  


GREAB asserts that this appraiser did have opportunities to sit for the exam at the end of 


December 2014, as there was availability at three different AMP exam sites.  ASC staff 


recommends that a formal investigation not be commenced.  V. Metcalf commented that 


GREAB’s Deputy Director asked AMP if the appraiser requested to take the exam and 


AMP said they had no record of the appraiser applying to sit for the exam.  In previous 


correspondence between GREAB and the appraiser, he was aware of the 2015 Criteria 


changes effective on January 1, 2015.  The appraiser submitted his application to GREAB 


on December 17th and GREAB contacted the appraiser on December 23rd by both phone 


and letter notifying him that his application had been approved.  She added that the 


message the appraiser said he received is not the typical wording that AMP uses to denote 


no availability at testing sites.  A. Bohorfoush said it appears that the appraiser wants the 


ASC to tell GREAB that it handled his application incorrectly.  She added that she does not 


think the ASC has the authority to tell GREAB that they handled this situation incorrectly 


nor can the ASC offer any remedies to the appraiser.  A. Lindo said a letter should be sent 


to the appraiser stating that the ASC has found insufficient evidence to start an 


investigation.     


The Closed Session adjourned at 11:55 a.m.       








 
 


Briefing 
Summary Notes 


Cover Page 
July 13, 2016 








Page 1 of 2 
 


APPRAISAL SUBCOMMITTEE 


SUMMARY NOTES 


MAY 11, 2016 


 


ATTENDEES 


ASC MEMBERS: FRB – Art Lindo 


   CFPB – Mira Marshall 


   FDIC – Marianne Hatheway 


   FHFA – Robert Witt 


   HUD – Ada Bohorfoush 


   NCUA – Tim Segerson 


   OCC – Richard Taft  


             


ASC STAFF:  Executive Director – Jim Park 


   Acting Deputy Executive Director – Vicki Metcalf 


   General Counsel – Alice Ritter 


   Attorney-Advisor – Dan Rhoads 


   Policy Manager – Neal Fenochietti 


   Management and Program Analyst – Lori Schuster  


   Administrative Officer – Brian Kelly 


              


OBSERVERS: CFPB – Deana Krumhansl 


   FDIC – Richard Foley 


   FDIC – Victor Olshansky 


   FDIC – Kim Stock 


   FRB – Matt Suntag 


   HUD – Robert Frazier 


   OCC – Chris Manthey 


   OCC – Bob Parson 


   OCC – Joanne Williams 


 


Purpose of the Briefing 


The purpose of this Briefing was to discuss the following:  (1) Future Appraisal Foundation 


grants; and (2) Federally Related Transaction (FRT) definition.   


Future Appraisal Foundation grants 


J. Park suggested that the ASC have a discussion with the Appraisal Foundation to discuss future 


grant funding.  The Foundation will be at the July 13th Briefing to discuss its  FY17 grant 


proposal.  Regarding State grant funds, J. Park said that States would like funding to go towards 


education rather than equipment purchases.  R. Witt suggested funds could be used for USPAP 


education and to distribute a free copy of USPAP to appraisers.  M. Marshall agreed with 


providing a free copy of USPAP to appraisers.  R. Taft commented that the ASC does have an 


oversight role to the Foundation and suggested the Foundation provide the ASC with a 5-10 year 


business plan.  J. Park said the Foundation has not spent all of the grant funds provided to them 







Page 2 of 2 
 


in some years and the ASC has withheld funds in the past.  R.Taft said if the ASC has approval 


to withhold grant funds it should be stated in the ASC’s grant policy; the policy now is fairly 


broad.  A. Lindo suggested that the ASC submit questions to the Foundation in advance of the 


July 13th ASC Briefing.  He suggested the ASC could expand on courses offered and research the 


competitive bidding process.   


Federally Related Transaction (FRT) Definition 


J. Park commented that the ASC has not yet responded to AARO’s August 2015 letter requesting 


clarification on the definition of an FRT.  Letters have also been received  from other entities.  R. 


Taft said that OCC staff briefed its Comptroller and is reaching out to other agencies.  OCC 


believes that this can be resolved legislatively or through the EGRPRA process.  He suggested 


letting States and other interested parties know that this issue is being discussed among the 


agencies.  C. Manthey said OCC is proposing an amendment to clarify an FRT in the appraisal 


regulations.  A. Lindo said that agencies will continue working on this and update the ASC staff 


on its progress.  








 


Briefing 
Cover Page 


July 13, 2016 








 


       


Appraisal Subcommittee 
Federal Financial Institutions Examination 


Council 
 


 


 


Briefing Agenda 


Date: July 13, 2016 


Time: Immediately following the ASC Open Session Meeting 


Location:   FRB, International Square 


1850 K Street, NW 


Washington, DC  20006 
 


 


 
 


 


Appraisal Foundation 2017 Grant Request J. Park 


 


Briefing Objective(s): 


 


The Appraisal Foundation will outline projects that may be included in the FY17 Grant Request.  


This will be an action item on the September 14th ASC Open Session Meeting agenda.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 


1401 H Street, NW Suite 760 Washington, DC 20005 (202) 289-2735 Fax (202) 289-4101 


Briefing Topic(s) 





